
211 6 

Tony Sponar 

This is an interview 
1986, by Klaus Hueneke, Tony was a hydrographer with the Snowy 

Mountains Authority from 1954 to 1957, and as part of that did a 

ski trip from Happy Jack's Plain through to Spencer's Creek , 

which features in my coming book. He then1during the 50s, became 

a keen promoter of a resort at Thredbo which finally got off the 
ground in 1957, 1hen, in 1959 to 1966 , Tony was involved in 

mon~ging Sponar's Lake s ide Inn. which was the servants' quarters 

of the old Kosciusko Hotel that burned down in 1951. He is also 
q u i t e a good downhill skier, being a champion from way back . 

KH : I will probably ask you some of those things again. 
They will probably come up again. 

TS: 

J<H : 

1966 . 11 

T5: 

TS : 

KH: 

Yes, all right. 
,, 

I ri ad "managed Spon a r' s Lakeside Inn :from 1959 to 

Yes , propri e tor. 

Proprietor. 

Yes. 

Can I start at the begi nning? Have you got any other 
names apart from Tony? 

TS: 

l(H: 

TS : 
V.H: 

TS : 

KH: 

TS: 

No. I don't use any . 

When were you born? 

8. 4. 20. 

And where were you born? 

Prague . Czechoslovakia . 

And what are your parents' names? 

My father is the same name, only it is pronounced dif-

ferently as I am - that is Antonin . And mother was Bertha . 
l<H : 

TS: 

KH: 

That is a very Gerrnan name, Bertha . 

Not really , that was a Czech name at that stage. 

I have got an aunt called Bertha, that is why. 
In the north of Ger many. 
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TS: 
KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

school? 

TS: 

You have been born here? 

No, I was born in Germany. 

I came out when I was a boy. 

I came out. 

And where did YOU go to 

In Prague. After the primary school, I had more or 

less a technical line of education . High school was technical, 

and then I learned mechanical. and electrical engineering , part of 

Prague University . It was the beginning of the war, and when the 

war started the universities were closed, and it was the end of 

my formal education. In the wa~ I mostly, for the first few few 

years, winter - ski instructor - and in summer I learned the 

trades of gilder and cabinet maker, because my father was in that 

kind of business, a nd it fitted whatever the war years offered. 

But most of t he time I spend skiing, I somehow managed to slip 

th rough the rules and all that , and although after the war I, for 

a littl e whi le, started to study architecture. My mind wa s made 

up that I will have my future in anything connected with moun-

tain s and G 1"lD l ,J which I managed eventually . 

KH: How did you get out of not serving in the war? Were 

you a soldier at all? 

TS: I was a Czech, and Hitler did not want Czechs to serve . 

He wante d us to work for him. I was supposed to work for him, 

but I think it is somewhere in that article there , that I managed 

to get medical certificate that I had epilepsy. 

KH : 

TS : 

nets. 

KH; 

then? 

Oh yes, that is right . I read that. yes. 

And with that I was able to slip through all those 

Of course, if they had caught me I would ha ve been shot. 

Oh, I see . It was that serious. So what happened 

You came to the end of the war and you, what, you slipped 

back across to Austria, or 

TS: No . I was supposed to either study or take over th e 

family business. And already the clouds were - pretty much bad 

indication that something is going to h appen to Eastern Europe. 
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I served in military service, 1947, already in the new Czechos-

~ovakian state, but it did not look well. And in 1948 I was i n 

the Olympic Games. and straight after the Olympic Games the com-

munists took over Czechoslovakia a n d I knew that I would not l ast 

there . So I started to p lan to escape . As it happened, it was 
not n ecessary to escape. I managed again by certain ways to -

actually I c onstructed, designed and constructed, Cl ski lift, 

and I managed to secure permission to take the ski lift out of 

Czechoslovakia for the purpose of training of the national team 

of Czechoslovakia. 

KH : What sort of a lift was it? I mean, it seems very 
easily transported . 

TS : It was mounted on a jeep. 

KH: Oh , right. So you used the motor of the jeep? 
TS : Yes. the motor of the jeep. Yes, it was mounted on it, 

and the jeep winched itself up the mountain into position at the 

top , and it had a huge winch in front which had on the end a 

series of T-bars . And these had to be taken down by one person , 
and the people got on to them and were towed up, 

KH: So it was not a rope? 

TS : It was a steel rope. I have a few pictures here . 

This was when it was in s talled in St . Christof in Austria in 
Aarlberg, It winched itself up. I t had sort of skids under all 

four wheels, and 500 metres of steel rope. On the bottom - these 
were prospective c ustomers, these were all war cripples. 

KH : 

TS : 
Oh, they all have one leg. 

One leg, and there were about 12 Ts, and they got on 
to it and the motor was started. There had to be one driver and 
one o r two to 

Christof. 
It was the first ski lift ever in St . 

KH: 
TS : 

KH : 
they? 

Oh, was it ? 

Yes. 

Gee. they have changed a lot over the years, haven't 

Ski lifts have come a long since that system. 
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TS: They were really gratefu l because, for instance, people 

like this find it extremely difficult to climb the mountain, 

They have to go sideways and carry everything on their arms . 

They were very grateful . It was a state-operated resort. And 

they were very glad that they had a means of transportation, 

I<H: 

TS: 

I<H: 

TS: 

I<H: 

St . Christof, that was in Austria? 

That is in Aarlberg, Austria yes, Tyrol. 

And then did you also take that further, that lift? 

I took it to Australia with me, without the jeep. 

Oh, I see. 

TS: Just all the equipment which was necessary to convert 

again - I intended to buy a jeep in Australia, and then just in-

stall. it on to that. It was suitabl e for that . I did that. I 

bought a jeep first, here in Australia. And I installed the 
lift. Well then, I fell ill, and had to give up that idea for a 
few years . 

KH : So how long did you then spend in Au stria? 

TS: In Austria, only two years, 48, 49, 50 we started for 

Aus tralia. and arrived 1 January 1951. Easy to remember . 

KH: Right. And when did you meet your wife. 
TS : I met her a lready in Czechoslovakia . She is English 
and she worked for a film company, American film company in 
Czechoslovakia. And then we married in Au stria, in Inn sbruck, 

and somehow through my wife's job in Austria, she worked for the 

International Refugee Organisation and for a while for the 

Australian Mission . And I could not - I wanted to go to USA or 

Canada, but for that the waiting time was very long 10 years 

for USA, 5 years for Canada . And these people from the 

Australian Mission suggested that there is snow in Australia and 

they need people who know something about snow and snow business, 

so I said, "OK, why not?" Never looked ba.ck. 
KH : Oh yes . What level did you reach in skiing, back home, 
back in Czechoslovakia? 

TS: I was unbeaten Czechoslovakian champion at that stage , 

[ 

l 
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I<H: What, in slalom or - - -
TS : Downhill slalom . And I was - my best placing was in 

Olympic Games, six, and I was placing regularly among the best 
then. 

KH: 

TS: 
So you came to Australia, what, in 1951? 

I 
51, yes. And already it was arranged that I would be 

employed as a ski instructor, because I was, as a refugee, under 

contract to do whatever the government requires. and this was as 
good as a nything. 

KH: Well, that was a pretty good job . You came over by 

ship, presumably, like lots of other people? 

TS: Yes. yes . 

KH: And who paid - were you assisted? 
TS: Yes. 

KH : Fully assisted, what , by the Austra l ian government, or 

TS : The Australian government, yes. ~~d. of course, that 

was a condition of the fully assisted people that they do 

whatever they are told to do for two years. 

KH: Right. And you were told to be a ski instructor! 
TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

Yes. 

Did you know very much about Australia before you came? 

Very little. 

You knew it had snow, though? 

We learned only - it never occurred to me to think of 

Australia to migrate to . because ..... ... , because I knew that 

skiing, as a business, as a sport, was developing very fast at 

that stage just on the threshold of developing in the United 

States and Canada. And I wanted to be part of that. Nothing 

happened here in Australia, I did not know about t hat. But I 

thought if they have snow, well maybe I will be able to put my 
:foot into it . 

KH: Because not many new Australians knew that Australia 

had snow, from what I can see. 
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TS: No, absolutely n o ne. No idea , unti l these friends - we 

became friendly with t he Australian Mission, and not unti l then 
did I know that there was skiing - as a sport in Australia. 
knew t here was sno w qL-1 .~ ~~i.oe-.ie\~rn~ 

I 

KH : But did you b ring a ny skis with you? 

TS: Yes, of course I did, yes . A coup le of pairs of skis, 

all t hi s e quipment f o r that, whic h wa s a huge wooden c rate . And 

that wooden c r ate later became the fi rs t structure at Thr~o . I 
put it on the narrow edge , s tood it up , and o~ c o uld get inside 

- the fi rst structure ever there . 
KH : A lot of people turned those big crates into garages. 

I know where I lived in Orange, they did . They were so b ig . 
TS : 
big. 

Yes. This was not big . I made it myse lf. not that 

But it made a u seful storage because I needed a few too l s 
at the beginning , a n d useful storage whic h you must lock up. 
KH : 

TS : 
So you. did not spend any time in a migrant camp , then? 

Only very shortly before tho se - o rganisation of the 

government got through . So o nl y about t hree months . 

KH: Wa s tha t at Bo neg illa? 
TS: 

KH : 

TS: 

KH : 

TS : 

No , i n Bathurst . 

In Bathurst? 

Yes . 

Yes , that i s right . 

Yes , t h ree mo nths. 
Ther e was a camp there. 

At the beginning o f April wear-

rived at t h e Ho tel Kosciu s ko . That was a government-run hotel, 

very nice . At that stage there was only a Chalet at Charlotte's 

Pass , a l so government - r un, and the Hotel Kosciusko, as public ac-
com modati on for skiers . Also there was about 30 beds available 
at the Kiandra Hotel , plus very small - two building s . One wa s 

Bt'fts C.amp between Ch arlotte and Smiggins , a nd at Smiggins there 

was a cafe, but no accomm odation. 
KH : Was that c afe run bY Johnny Abbotsmith then ? 
TS : No, no. That cafe was also by govern ment - everything 
was run by the government . 
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KH: Oh , I see. 

TS : Everything at that stage was g o vernment , because t he 

rules of the park required it. And ru les had to be changed , and 
they were first time changed f or Thredbo , which I was part of. 
KH: 

TS : 

KH : 

TS : 

KH : 

TS : 

S o were YOU there when t he hotel burned d own? 
Yes. A week after we arrived, it b urned down . 
Oh , my God! What a welcome to the mountains . 
But we used to joke about that . 

Before or after? 

No. after. We u sed to j oke who p u t the match to it? 

Whether it was my wife or myself . I wa s actually one of t he f i rst 
ones to see the fire, because I was living in what is now called 
Sponar's, And I was on t he second floor , and from the top I 
could see this big wooden building, and a ll of a sudden - I don ' t 
know why I woke up at night - I s aw these yellow 
, ... . . .. jumping o n the ceil ing, so I looked out of the window, 

and here was a l ready a nice decent fire on the roof . At that 
stage somebody started to scr eam and it went very fast. 

lucky that nobody wa s . ki lled because - ver y fast . 
KH : Were there people sleeping in that part? 

It was 

TS : There were . I was sleeping in t his c oncrete building , 

which i s Sponar ' s now . which was staff quarters . But I was so-
called outsi de staff, and my wife was emp l oyed as inside s taff , 

and we were not allowed to associate . She had to s l eep somewhere 
else, and I h ad to sleep somewhere else . 
KH : I see. 

TS : So she slept in the hotel building , whi ch wa s made out 
of wood, timber . 
KH: 

TS 

KH : 

TS : 

Oh. is that rig h t? 

Yes. 

Bu.t i t had stone claddin g in some parts . 

Only very few . The fron t e ntrance was stone cladding, 
but very , v ery little. 

KH : It i s funny , that . Because i t makes it appear like a 
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very solid building when you see all the photos of the front of 

it, 
TS: 

But the rest of it was just wood, 
Come and have a look at - these here . 

KH: Right. So what happened when the hotel burned down? 

TS: Well, there was at that stage - the hotel had:capacity 

of 150 guests. But it was run by government, it required 170 

staff to run those 150 guests . And so most of the staff had to 

be dismissed , and we were lucky that we were transferred to the 

Charlotte's Pass Chalet. I was a ski instructor, and my wife as 

a receptionist. Which was so much better than the hotel. because 

the hotel never really was deep in snow, and I preferred to be 

deep in snow. 

KH: 

TS: 

KH : 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

T C,• ..., . 

So then you. instructed th~t winter. 

Three years. yes. 

Three years. 

Yes . 

So you were at the Chalet for three years . 

51, 52, 53, And 54, I was already with the Snowy. 

And did you do much trip skiing on the Ma in Range? 

Yes, quite a bit. In 51, the .SKi ·Tourers Association 

started to build Albina Hut, and Charles Anton was the president , 

a very active, energetic man, who organised everybody to help 

with that. So right from the beginning I sort of volunteered to 

take trips to Albina transporting materials and all that goes 

with that . And then very early also I started to look at Thredbo 

Valley, because on the map it looked promising, It was the 

highest vertical drop for skiing. And finally summer 51/52, the 

first summer, I h ad a look at Thredbo. 

at that stage. 

KH: Did you walk in, or ride in? 

Thredbo was inaccessible 

TS: No, we rode in from the Chalet, from the Kosciusko 

Chalet . 

KH: 

TS: 

Oh, across the tops? 

Yes. 
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KH: Across via Merritts - - -

TS: Not Merritts . There was anotoer trAck, overgrown. I 
. ' . C ht>-.lkt., 

had a very good friend at the Chalet, Gr~hoM rrom Cooma, who was 

a bushman, and he knew the track. It was not easy to find. and 

so we went into Thredbo Valley the first time. 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

That was an old bridle track, was it? 
Yes. 

Was that an old route that they took cattle up? 

No, no. Cattle was apparently taken - according to 

Mitchell - was taken on the Merritts Spur. I am not sure 
about that because it does not make any sense. It is very steep 

and was always overgrown. 

fro m Dead Horse Gap . 

I am almost certain it must have been 

KH: Yes. 

TS : Because from Dead Horse Gap it is very easy. It has 
never been overgrown 1 <;~1~ (''!e.r 
KH: 

access. 

That is my impression, too, that Dead Horse Gap was the 

So you. rode across from the chalet and you rode right 

down into the valley? 

T c,. ..., . Yes, and we finished down in the valley. We finished 

at a location which was at that stage already k nown as 1-kx-se. ~ho~ 

Bend. Very good fishing, we were always fishing - - - and as it 

happened, it was very, very close to a location where only three 

Years later the Australian Ski Association decided to hold Na-

tional Downhill on the Thredbo slopes. 

because it was a very good run. 
They were well advised 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

to the 

They did that without having lift s there? 

Without any lifts, yes. 

They went across from the Chalet, did they? 

From the Chalet, they had to ski down and go 

,C!1a1et. As it happened, a girl racer broke her 

up again 

leg right 

on the bottom there . And they had to carry her all the way up to 

the top of ~P_jO..f0.0 •.• Range and al l the way to the Chalet, because 

there was no way of access from Jindabyne. 
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KH: But there was a bridle track along the river. 
TS: There was a bridle track, yes . There was a bridle 

track, but the downhill finished more or less on the tree line. 

And to get through the bush would have been impossible to carry 
an injured person. 

KH : 

TS: 

KH : 

TS: 

KH: 

But those slopes had been skied earlier in the 40s. 

Yes. they had, yes. 

In the old . Ski Y~ar Book. 

Yes, that is right, yes. 

So did you then go over there and ski as well? The 
following winter? 

TS : t-.lcl- 10 1 9 4 0 s ? 

KH: No, after you did your horse ride to have a look at it, 
did you then ski it in the winter time? 
TS: Only the first time when - I would have to search my 
memory. I must have, because I was very, at that stage - a ski 
instructor. We were only two ski instructors in New South Wales 
at that stage . 

KH: Who was the other one? 

Rudy Wurt, a Swiss fellow. And we were both at the TS: 

:Cnalet, because there was nothing else anywhere. And we were 
as ski instructors, it was almost our duty that we have to help 
with all the racing. And whenever the racing was, we had to set 
the courses, and often it was here and there. 

stage it was near the slopes of Thredbo Valley 
So already at that 

were racing 
courses. And whether we wanted to or not we had to go there. wv-c.. 

So ther7\other people who were already skiing those KH: 

slopes. 

TS: Yes, Yes. I believe that first well, ElyC\e.. : Mitchell 
again records the first time skiing -lo Dead Horse Gap. And 
about 1943 - I have got it written down somewhere - Dr Peter 

Blaxland skied Thredbo slopes much lower down. Very probably 
very close where we went down on the bridle track in 1951. 
KH: And YOU got the idea that this might be suitable for a 
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resort. 

TS: 
But what steps did you then take? 

I started to talk about it,. and nobody would listen , 
until one year, it was 1()5~ when I was in charge of the 

meteorological station at Spencer's Creek, the job of ski in-
structor at the Chalet · · S ha. Nek..i ·I was inherited by . as - .. ,qpi . . . And one 
day I met her, I was at Spene er's Creek, which was only 2 v 
kilometres from the fhalet, and she said she had found somebody 

who is interested in doing something about developing Thredbo 
Valley . It was a Sydney architect by the name of Eric Nichoils. 

And he knew the ways of publicising and he did quite a few clever 

things. like inviting a Swiss designer of chairlifts to visit the 
mountains, which got publicity. And then people I used to talk 
to who would not listen to me, all of a sudden started to - " Oh, 
we want to be i.n it, we want to be in it." And that is how it 
started. Everybody wanted to be in it, but nobody wanted to put 
any money in it. 
KH: 

still. 
I mean, skiing was so - it was the pioneering era 

Even then there was very little skiing in Australia. How 
did you - what were the factors that led you to think that some-
thing might take off? I mean, it was all an unknown . Now we 
look at it with hindsight. But in the 50s it was all unknown . 
TS : When I decided -it was during the war or maybe already 
before the war that my future is in snow . And I started to look 
around and I travelled quite a lot, even during the war I 
travelled quite a lot . And I loved the atmosphere of whatever 
this way of life of skiing brings along . I knew that it was the 

right , correct, thing, and I wanted to be in it. And I believed 

that whenever there is snow there should be some kind of 
facilities to use the snow. So I was convinced that the same 
thing could happen in Australia, that i t has to happen. 
KH: So YOU got these people to visit the area, and so on. 

And then what wa s the first tangible thing that happened? 
TS: Well. the first thing which happened was we very early 

formed a syndicate of four skiers, Charles Anton was one of them; 
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Eric Nicholls and another man from Sydney . And this syndicate 

started to investigate ways of getting the thing under way. Of 

course, the worst problem was that no --body had any money for 
that. At that stage, it was actually in 1954 when Eric Nicholls, 

the Sydney architect, invited this chairlift designer from Swit-

zerland, and we visited the mountains, which was damn good 
publicity . At this stage already it was known that the Snowy 

wants to push roads through Thredbo Valley, and connect with Vic-
toria. And already the road was under construction, and it was 

possible to - I think the road, at the visit of this chairlift 

manufacturer - definite l y was not through yet, but it was as far 

as - pushed through by bulldozer - as far as ~t .11Ye:dtP .. 
already had under investigation several locations which I wanted 

for the resort o f Thredbo, and I took this party to Thredbo Val-

ley by my jeep, and we walked up from the river, near this loca-

tion which I mentioned to the - Horseshoe Bend - and we walked 

I 

rig ht to the top, through the bush. And at that stage the chair-
lift manufacturer from Switzerland was very, very doubtful about 

the whole thing , because he had never seen anything. There was 
no road: there was no people; no nothing. Who wants to build a 

lift anywhere where there is absolutely nothing? Not only that, 

but with the jeep one would get bogged many times to get to the 

location only, because they just bulldozer pushes, nothing more. 
But it started to move. By sheer chance we found a man who had 
money . He was prepared to - his name was Thyne Reid - and he was 
prepared to finance the very beginning of 
KH: 

TS: 

people . 

What was his christian name? 

Thyne - T-H-Y-N-E, Reid. 

Hardie's - Hardie Asbestos. 
They are from the Hardie's 

John Reid is his nephew, 
who was the chairman of the fucentennial. 
KH: Oh, I see. Yes. 
TS: He is also chairman of Hardies , Hardie Asbestos. 
KH: Right . So he put u p some money? 
TS: He used to say, "I have to also put up money for my 
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little nephew." 

more. 
That is John Reid - he is not very little any 

KH : No . And what, he put up some money for the chairlift. 
TS : He put some money in for the investigation purpose. 

Four huts were purchased at Munyang Camp, which were left over 

for the Snowy by the contractors, Selma Engineering, the Nor-

wegian people who consl::ructed Guthega. And we bought these huts 

for 500 pounds each, and we transported them to Thredbo. Not all 
of them, one at the first stage. And that became the Thredbo 
Lodge, the first hut, built in 157. And right next door was a 

,<:;/2~ .. lodge which was also finished in '57, called Crackenback 
Ski club . So in '5 7 there were the,S.t, - one was financed by the 
club, the other one was financed by Thyne Reid . And I had the 
use of the lodge rent free to run it as business. q . 

Also 11 ski tow 
was constructed, not starting on the bottom, but starting in the 

middle of the slope, so in the morning everybody had to walk half 

an hour to the middle slopes before they cou l d get the ski tow. 
KH: Is this the same - it is not the jeep system? 
TS: No, no. It was a rope tow. 
KH: Was that somewhere near the middle station, that flat 
sort of - slightly flat. 
TS: 

~areela. 
Yes, that is where it started and finished near 

And tha t was the only transportation at that stage. In 

the meantime, more people joined the syndicate and decided to 
float a p ublic company. 

KH: Who else came into it? 
TS: Thyne Reid came into that, and in my days, Peter Lloyd. 
Peter Lloyd is a well-known aviator . He is, I think, president 
of an international body of aviators, or something like that . 

He used to have a car dealership, Peter Lloyd Austin, I think. 
KH: Did that become a public company? 
TS. : It became a public company in 58, but did not get 
a nybody from the public . 

KH: And people could buy shares? 
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TS! 

KH: 
Yes. 

But they did not. 
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TS: No. So it was completely left to Thyne Reid to finance 

it. So by 158, there were already 15 huts, and a chairlift. The 

huts were~~~ ... huts, but the lodge was enlarged to about three 

times its original size by /58. And the chairlift was opera-

tional. 

KH: 

lift. 

TS: 

KH: 

And it was already a running concern. 

I see. So that company put up the money for the chair-

Yes. 

And built it. 

TS: The company, it was actually Thyne Reid, but the com-
pany, yes. 

KH: And who did the clearing of the ski runs? 

TS: I did. Actually, the first chairlift line was not what 
became where the chairlift was later built. I wanted to have 

it somewhere else, not very far, but for some reason ,the plan-

ners in Sydney decided they did not want it there, and they 

wanted it where it is at the moment, which has proven to be a 

mistake right through the years, because my line 

I have pictures of that - was supposed to finish in the golf 

links, what are now the golf links at Thredbo . 
KH: More in the shelter. 

and 

TS: More in the shelter, more snow. Every year there is at 

least 3 or 4 weeks longer skiing to the bottom. And it was a 
great mi s take. 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

And closer to the Spider Run, is it? 

Yes. 

There is a chairlift goes up that gully now. 

No, no . Nothing there. There is a chairlift all 
these chairlifts start at the central point in the middle valley. 
KH: 
valley? 

TS: 

Yo0 would have put that central point f~rther up the 

Exactly. Where the old tennis courts and the golf 
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links are, and that would have been - Thredbo's reputation would 

have been much better if that had happened. Because Thredbo has 

a reputation that very seldom there is snow to the bottom which 
is true. But for every year to get three, four, weeks extra, 

without snowmaking of- .cf:IJ.f~. 1!'\. those days, would have been very 

much different,and to the village, nothing, absolutely nothing 

happened. 

KH: You still have the problems of winds at the top, I sup-

pose, no matter where you go? 

TS: At that stage the technology of chairlifts w~S not 
good enough to take it into the wind. 

chairlift at tareela. 
So we finished the first 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

Oh, I see. 

Protected. 

What happened to the technology - what changed to 

enable it to go right up? 
TS: 

KH : 
didn't it? 

TS : 

KH: 

TS: 

I think it was simply that they did not dare. 

That is right, because the chairlift stayed the same, 

Yes. 

The chairs stay the same. 

I think that is all what it was. When Lend Lease took 
over in 63, they said straight away, "Let' s go right to the top 

with that." And they did. And well, they had to close every 
now and then. But not so mu c h damage done. 
KH : 
TS : 

end. 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

And YOU left that group? 

Yes. in 58. It was not very pleasant, but it was the 

Why did YOU leave? 

They kicked me out. 
Why did you - - -

Oh, did they? I see. Oh wel l. That seems very 
strange, that they were able to do that. I would have thought 

that You were one of the prime - I mean, a person who, because 

You started the whole thing. 
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TS: Yes, there was - it is hard to explain, but I think 

there still is in business a lot of jealousy. And any ideas, 

like the chairlift idea, for instance, I could not simply get 

through, and they said no. They had no idea what it was about. 

And any suggestion, any planning I did, they always said no. And 

then started to do it a year later. But it was already too late. 

Something else happened. So, of course, I did not like it. I 

told them SO, So they said, "All right, YOU go ." But in the 

meantime I signed a - what is the name for it - a certain con-

tract that I would never be in competition with the company. But 

they kicked me out. I was not allowed to go into any kind of 

business in Thredbo Valley for about 10 years or so. So I could 

not go there. So I started to look around, and here was this 

burnt out building at the old Hotel Kosciusko site. So I applied 

to the government and they were very g l ad to get rid of it be-

cause it was an eyesore.and so they gave me permission for oc-

cupancy of that for two years. And depending how well I am going 

to perform that they will give me a lease, a long lease. 

KH: Were the floors burnt out in the building too? 
TS: 

KH: 

No, the floors were concrete . 

Oh, were they? 
I 

TS: Yes. the floors were concrete, but between 51 when it 

burnt out and ~9 when I took it over , a lot of skiers were camp-

ing in the building. And they used the floor - actually one «tvi( 
half floors were burnt out, including the flooring . Which meant 

the flooring - although the floors were concrete, the flooring 

was timber. And the timber was burnt out in about half the 

building, and the rest the campers used to start fires inside the 

building so that they had some warmth there. So eventually it 

was almost every bit of timber was burnt inside for campfires. 

KH : And there was no roof over it at that stage? 
TS : There was. The roof came pretty soon after the fire. 

The government decided that they will rebuild Hotel Kosciusko, 

a nd put that roof on very early after the fire. I forget which 
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year it was, but it was very soon after the fire, within possibly 

two years or so. And also the windows. 

KH: They put all that in? 

TS: They put the windows in, yes. So by the time I 
over, it was weatherproof already. 

KH : Do You have any records of when that was built, 
whole thing? 

TS : 

KH : 

TS: 

KH: 

Yes. 

lt was the servants' quarters. 

Yes. 12 6. 

½6 it was built. Right. 

took 

that 

TS: There is a plagu e in the back of the building still 
there, when it was opened. 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

Oh, is that right? 

Yes. 

Because there were a number of lower buildings behind 
there before that. 

TS: Yes. Well, they were added up, like all the government 

is, you know, they bui l d a little bit - originally the Hotel Kos-

ciusko was very small. And it kept enlarging. I have some pic-

tures of the origina l Hotel Kosciusko . And they kept enlarging 

all the time, and those outbuildings in the back , they remained 
after the fire. Actually one of the outbuildings was converted 

then into a public bar, and a man from Ireland who used to go to 

drink there - that was the only public bar there, there was . It 

had a dirt floor, and I helped. In summer I was employed as a 

carpenter . So we built the first bar there out of what remained. 

The government would not put any money into materials, so we had 

to pull down some buildings to make the counter for the bar . 

KH: Who ran the bar? 

TS: It was a dirt floor, and one of the remaining employees 

wa s, I think, after the fire, about three or four , maybe a bit 

more people - were employed to clear up and stay around. And as 

I say, Graham Chalker, the fellow I mentioned before, and I, we 
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were the carpenters. 

counter, in 51. 

So we built the first bar there, the first 

KH: So did you also use those buildings to live i n while 

you were fixing up to change the whole place into a chalet or a 
hotel? 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

No, 

Like, after you dropped out of Thredbo - - -

Oh, the other buildings? 

Yes . 

The small buildings at the back? 

Yes. Did YOU - - -

No, I had no access to that. And there wa s very little 
le:ft o:f that. There was the postmi?tress, Mrs McManus. living 

there, and then there was - when I came in 59 I think it was only 

Mrs McManus who remained :from all the staff there. She was the 
postmistress . And they still had these buildings which were 
empty and rotting. They were all wooden. 
KH: So what d i d you start doing when you got the lease to 
the building? 

TS: Well once I got permission :for occupancy, I started on 

the walls, because they were so - and tried to :find out what 
condition it is in. And ,as it happened, least of all affected by 

the fire was the second :floor o:f the building. Everything wa s-
burnt out on the top. Everything was burnt out on the bottom, 
but the second floor was least a:f:fected. So I decided to use the 
second floor as accommodation ; do absolutely nothing about the 

staircases and things like that - t hey were terrible, slime and 
water running and dirty . But there was no time. I got permit 
for occupancy , I got in Easter. I had to be open for winter, so 

KH: So you had to insta l l a kitchen? 
TS: There was a - also on the ground floor, there was one 
corner o:f the building was least affected . And during those in-
tervening years between the fire and me taking o ver, they cleaned 

l 

2134 
Tony Sponar 

up thi s corner and put a kitchen there. It was a pretty cosy 
little kitchen. And whatever sta:ff remained there, they used to 

eat in this kitchen. And for a while there was an old laundress 

living there, and she used to cook in the kitchen :for the remain-
ing sta:f:f. Or iginall y , there were a few, about five, but by the 
time I arrived, I t hink it was only Mrs McManus was left. 
KH: So you operated that first winter, in 1959. 

TS: I repaired it, I c leaned up about one-third of the 

ground :floor, and used the kitchen, and we had a small room which 

was the lounge, lounge and dining room combined, 
lt11mJle. 

very small with 

was still fall-
. -/,fe 

entrance in the back, because the front wa'l\- it 

ing of:f - the masonry , and there was no door even in front. 
KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

That was very primitive. 

Very primitive. 

But you. got some customers. 
Yes, yes . There was no accommodation. 

I\ 

After the fire, 
all there was in the whole NSW snowfields, wa s 130 beds. 
KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

Like, the Thredbo ones? 

No, af t er the fire, 1951 

Oh yes, that is right, yes. 

Only 100 beds at Kosciusko Chalet, and Charlotte's 

Pass, a nd 30 beds in Kiandra, and people wanted to ski. 
KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

But by 59 Thredbo was already off the ground. 

Thredbo was a lready off the ground. 

Perisher had a :few lodges, I think. 

Perisher had a few, yes.Sriovy ,l?f~e!IEY'~ in 59 actually 
Perisher opened. The Su.ndeck opened the same year as I opened, 
59, 

KH: 

TS: 
stay, 

The Sundeck and one t-bar. 

But you. had enough customers to bring in enough money -

Yes, because people were keen and there was nowhere to 

And - I got a contract with a sporting firm called Mick S im-

mons who guaranteed me certain occupancy , and with their 

Publicity we were able to give reasonable business. 
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KH: 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

How many beds did you have at first? 

Thirty beds. 

And that slowly expanded, I suppose? 

Yes. Eventually I finished with officially 100, unof-

ficially more. 

KH: And so you slowly got enough money together to restore 

the rest of it? 

TS: Yes . 

KH: And then you built some more things around the bottom , 

too, didn't you? 

TS: Yes. By 1964 it was already finished, 5 years was in 

this state - -
KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

You must have worked pretty hard. 

I did. 

But your wife was working with you? 

Yes. That first year, the first winter, most of the 

winter we were alone, just 30 people. 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

serving. 

KH: 

TS: 

Just the two of you? 

Yes. 

Cooking and - - -
Everything. I made the beds, she was cooking. 

And the next year you employed someone? 

I was 

Oh yes. Next year, by ~3 we had already - yes, every 

year one extra floor opened, and more space on the bottom. 

In ~3, it was already the third floor - was already operational 

for accommodation 

l<H: 

TS: 

KH: 

people . 

TS: 

I mean, it is a very big building from the looks of it. 

Yes. 

It seems as though it could hold a couple of hundred 

Well, I don't think it would have been permitted by the 

l 
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The Park actually insisted that I have only 100 beds. Park. 

KH: And that is pretty large by Park standards, isn't it. 

I mean, most of the lodges only have 30 or 36. 
TS: Yes. This is right, but somehow the Park's regulations 

seem to be less strict when you go a bit lower down. Wilson's 
Valley Motel is able to have large 

as they can higher up . 
they want to protect as much 

KH: And then in ~6 you handed over the management to your 
wife, did you? 

the time? 
And you went to do other things? Was that about 

TS: 

was there. 

It was a bit earlier than that. It was 64. 

I was still was around for emergencies. 

I still 

But I 
started to make films in ~4. and that consumed almost all my 

time. It was something new; I had to learn it, and my wife 
proved capable of doing ;t, so why not? 

KH : 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH : 
years. 

And she enjoyed it? 
No . 

be, Oh, she didn't? 

I think she did, but she liked to~ossy 1 so 
She liked to be bossy, oh, I see. 

The more employees there was to push around -

You would not have done much skiing for those few 

T.5: I did none at all. I had no mind for it because - ab-

solutely consuming work to try to do something about it. None at 

all until I stopped making films. Then I said, well , it is about 

time that I start to play. It was '68 . 

KH: But the making films was playing, too, surely, wasn ' t 

it? Or did you - - -
TS: Well, hard work because I had to learn it. 
KH: But YOU did not think of it - did YOU make money? Did 

You go out to make money from your films? 

TS: I tried, but I did not. I won Australian Film Award, 

but I did not make any money. 
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KH: What were the films called? 

TS : "Which Mountain~ 

KH: Right. And there were some oth ers . That was the only 

one you made in the Snowy Mo~nt?ins, was it? 

TS: No , I made - I was Af -lh.-1 stage stringer for Channel 9, 

Sydney, and I d i d all these short documentaries and news for 

them. I had an open - a sort of open invitation to film whatever 

there is newswor t hy, a n d so I did, And of course,I used quite a 

l ot to publicise Sponar ' s, which I did . And it was very good . 

KH: That sounds like a good system . 

TS: Whenever snow fell , of course, I got out to show there 

is plenty of snow arou nd. And it worked quite well . 

KH: Did you and your wife manage to have children at all 

along the way? 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

I<H : 

TS: 

KH: 

hole . 

TS: 

KH: 
TS : 

We had a daughter, yes. 

Where is she now? 

She died in a car accident . 

That was unfortunate. 
171 . 

How l ong ago? 

And did you build the swimming pool at -

Yes. 
You got what - I guess you got someone e l se to dig the 

Yes, yes . 

Was that heated? 

Yes, it was heated, yes. I wanted that lake in front , 

which became a bit swampy , I wanted to make it bigger . 

the Park ' s permission to build up t h e dam we.II . 
And I got 

I did, and 

it looked beautifu l , and then came the biggest floods there were 

ever at Kosciusko, it burst the da';1 Jompletely • . . X.. /~sf: . .. the w~ fc. 
l ake . 

KH : 

TS: 

Creek. 

Real l y? It drained t otA l lY? 
Be.ncl 

It completely destroy ea the Islll/\CI 11.road over · Diggers 

It took away the power station. I had a litt l e power 
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station there. 

KH : Yes, that is right . The remai ns are still there. 
TS : Yes, that is right . It took that away - it got right 
through it, the water . And of course , I wa n ted the lake back , 
but this time I had to pay for it . 
KH: What year was this wh en the big flood came t h rough? 

TS : I forget which year i t could h ave been - it could have 
been about /63, '64 . I could find it somewhere. The Snowy Moun-
tains also was hired to repair the wall, 
KH : I n ever realised that . And did YOU then build it 
higher again ? 

TS: No , no . 

KH: Back to the old level. 
TS : Yes . Actually , wh ile we had - we had a fantastic open-
ing for t h at bigger lake . had pamphlets pri nted, where they 
stated, you know, how much material was used on that buildi ng -

building the extra height of t h e dam. It was very - supposed to 
be funny - and Sir William Hudson , who was the chief of the Snowy 

wa s invited to open the extra dam, and how many litres of wa t er 

there was extra, and how much power - it was all a joke , 

naturally. But if a l l the concrete was put into a column of con-
. p~ 

crete between Sydney and Melbourne, it woul~one quarter inch 

high and one-eighth of an inch wide. I still have got those in-

vitations somewhere here. It was a big party , but unfortunat e l y 

it did not last - - -
KH: No . Because the origina l dam , I think, was built by 
gold miners, wasn't it, they say . 
TS : I am not sure. They say - I am not sure, because I 
never read anythin g about t hat . Because there is the other 
reservoir there - h i gher up - for the water supply. 
KH : For the Kosci usko Hotel? 
TS: Yes. That is a very nice little l ake . I gave it a 
name, Rainbow Lake . An d I see now that they use the name. 
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KH: Did you use the water from the lake for power 
generation? 
TS: Yes. 
KH: Oh YOU did. You had a wheel down the bottom, did you? 
TS: Yes, in that power station, yes. It was extremely an-
cient and neglected, a lot of trouble. I used that until about 

,, ,, 
63, 64, but only two or three years I used it, because it was 
very troublesome. I bought a generator. I had a generator in-
stalled already in 1963 , I remember. 
came council power. 

And then 65 came,about 65, 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

You had to have your own power? 
Yes. 

That was the only power you could - you had to make 
your own power? 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

Yes. 

So what did they use to do in the Hotel before? 
Make their own power. 
From? 

They had three generators, down in 
the power station, plus a huge diesel outside the hotel. It was 

in that building which only disappeared about a year ago. Do you 

remember that building - it colla~sed a few years back. 
KH: 

TS : 

KH: 

Yes. Someone pulled it down, didn't they? 
I don't know. 

Surely, I think so. 
TS: I have no idea. But the Soil Conservation used it as a 
storage . 

KH: 
TS : 

But it was very rotten, very rotten. 
Was it? 
Very. It was all the time falling something off. And 

I notice, only one day, I noticed that it was not there any more. 
It was collapsed , So that was the power station. 
KH: That was where the motors were? I see .. 
TS: But I used originally only the hydro one, which was 
also very troublesome. 
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KH: 

to? 
TS: 
ney , 

KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

And who did YOU sell to? Who did you sell the C~alet 

A fellow called Maurice Green a 
1 

What Year was that? 
;80. 

Oh, 180. Oh, only a few years ago? 
Yes. 

keen skier from Syd-

So you were still the leaseholders - you and your wife 
were still in charge of the place? 
TS: 

KH : 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

Yes. 

Until 1980. 

Right. 

Yes . 

On my 60th birthday I sold out. 

So you were involved with that for 21 years? 

Oh, I did not realise that. So your wife was manager 
for quite a few years? 
TS: Yes, yes. That water from the Rainbow Lake was not the 
only water used for power generation, b ut when the power gener-

ation stopped, it was also the water supply, but it had 

I( fanta stic 1-ien.d , of course, because it was 400 metres p. 
KH : No, it would not be in metres, it would be feet, maybe. 
TS : No, no. 400 feet, yes. But still, you could not use 
it daily, because all the taps would ·bt<1v.i off. So it had to have 
feeding tanks on the slope behind. And of course.I had to look 
after all this. I had to look after the power generation, I had 
to· look after the water supply, after - we had a very good, for 

the time, sewage treatment, which was very much praised by the 

health inspectors who visited, at that stage already, which is 
still there, which is in -V~ 

(end of tape) 
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KH: What were the characteristics of the sewerage treatment 

plant that made it so efficient? 

TS: Well, I don't know enough about it. But it had troughs 

which wo:.::-1-:ed on overbalancing as the _jla_ter was dripping into it, 
~e. ~er~/ s. -fhAr . 

and then it overbalances/\ .. the effluent was all the time 
naturally put through all the filters, and they were very happy 

abou t it. At once stage they asked me to do more about effluent, 

which I did. I got from the Snowy those huge ventilation pipes 

which they used in the tunnel , and I buried them i~~lats for 

the '!11?.~P,~~.trenches and all that. But everybody was happy was 

about that. 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

Because it is a major issue now, isn't it? 

Yes, very much. 

Sewerage from Perisher and Thredbo. 

Yes, very much, yes. 

And Guthega, too. 

Yes. Even in 1980 when I soY out, I saw that one of 

the stumbling blocks may be that the health people will require 

the new owner to put a treatment in which already then was very 

expensive . It would have cost as much as I got for the place. 

But they didn't, they were happy. 

KH: 

again? 

TS: 

So it was not all that difficult to get the place going 

I mean, it was a bit primitive, but you could manaa~~ 

Yes. The water was there. The sewer was prctc.-hco./1~ 
not available, because it was all overgrown, there were bushes in 

side the pipes. The pipes were one and a half kilometres long. 

KH: Really? 

TS: Yes. And everything _blocked up. The manholes were 

filled with rubbish; the concrete blocks which covered them were 

down in the manholes. So the sewerage smashed up, . e -ie r~ thin~ 

was not really available. It was worse and worse, but through 

the years as blockages occurred, we had to dig and find where the 

blockages are and improve them. That was my work, also. 

KH; Did p eople ski around there very much? 
+cw on +tx;,.-t 1 --tti,n I< 

,5 · Tn 1%4
1 

I sio,-JQd Cl perm I ;+l Of\ --fte 1-<erry 

You still had a 
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0~ ...... course which was just around the corner. It was good, but 

one learnt with the skiers all the time, and one thing I learnt 

that people really want to ski where there are a lot of people 

around, although they complain there is too much waiting, but 

they would not ski where there is only a handful. So already 

Smiggins was functioning; Perisher was functioning; and I simply 

did not get enough business on this tow, on this poma lift, for 

the reason that there were only, at the best, 50 people skiing. 

KH; 

been cut? 

TS: 

Do people still use some of the other tracks that have 

I mean, one had been cut right up to - - -

No, no, none at all. They were right to the top and 

they were nice tracks, I used them myself, if I could ever get 

somebody to drive that ........ machine. I would get towed up and 

ski down in deep snow. I love deep snow skiing, So if I find a 

good driver who would take me up and down - but that was after I 

started skiing again. I started skiing in '5s again. 

KH: 

wha t in 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

So when you worked on the Snowy Scheme, that started, 

I started in 1954. 

54. 

Yes. 

And did you start as a hydrographer? 

I wanted tc be employed by the hydrographic sec-

tion because, for some reason or other, there were quite a number 

of my fr i ends, Czech friends, working for them. The hydrographic 
C'!!li-f lrr:./::, 

section was almos;/\composed of Czechs. 

KH: Yes, this is very unusual in the Snowy Scheme. I am 

finding this again and again, people telling me that such and 

such a nationality was in charge of that more. The Ita l ians were 

in the tunnels, blasting and involved with the earth; the Germans 

were on the technical side. 

TS: They were surveyors. Germans were surveyors. 

KH: There was another group. The English and the 

Australians tended to be on the administration. 

TS: Yes. 

KH: In Cooma. 
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TS : Yes. 
KH : Po les - I don't know about them. What were the Poles, 

t he Polish? 
TS: I don't think they h ad any special i ty . But I know that 
when I moved to Cabramurra .. our office, hydrographic office , -~ 

,alt~ 
o /1,side s u rveyors , who were Germans; on the other side the dril-
ler s, because we were three, investigati on . And drillers were 

Australians, for some reason. 

KH : Right. And then the Slovene-s, t hey were more the chain 
gangs and helping with the s u rveying, I think , out in the hills. 

TS : 
KH : 

that way. 
TS: 

Yes, yes. They were the helper s in this, yes . 
I mean . I don 't think it was intentionally designed 

I think it just happened that a coup l e of Cz e chs were 
all of a suddenu.or accidentally joined hydrograph y , and while 

we,,e T""e-rC-/ 
the s e Czech?\ well, the otheQ said , "We will join ." 

KH : Because it was not just becau se of the skiing. I mean, 
hydrographers di d a lot of skiing, didn't they , by comparison to 

the other workers. 
TS : Yes. 
KH : So f or t h ose who h ad a skiing back ground , it must have 
been guite attractive to join hydrography, 
TS : Yes, it was, yes. 
job , a very interesting job. 

And it was a n extremely i n terestin g 

I was hired as - a lthough it was 
the hydrograph y section - but in hydrography as well as, I think , 

some other investigation branches . I had to start as chainman . 
c l ass 2 , which was the lowest paid job CA the Snowy . 
KH : You. h ad to? 
TS: Yes . Everybody had to. 
KH: It was a little bit than class one , was it? 
TS: No , it was worse. You first had class two - if I 
remember - l may be the other way round . But I know that there 
t wo classe~ c hainmen, and we started a ll on the lowest paid job. 

But very soon, they started to ask me to do things like - well, 
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one of my first jobs, I remember , was to ride to the · Tin Mines 
with the horse boss, on pack horses. 
KH : 

TS: 
KH : 

Who was in c harge of the horses? 
Harvey, a fellow called Ha r vey . 
So you rode out to the Tin Mines? 

Yes, we had to ride to the Tin fflines to find a location TS: 
for a gaugi ng stati o n on the upper Murray. And i t was very in-

teresting. 
KH : 

think? 
TS : 

Did you put that one in? Tha t one on Tin Mine Creek , I 

Tin Mine Creek came - we found t he location on this 
particular day . Tin Mine Creek is where the upper Murray - we 
found the location on this particular day . And it was put in 
later by some kind of building gang , But later I put in several 
gauging stations al l around . And this was interesting trip . I 

remember o n the way back , my horse go~terrible gash in his 
stomach . It did not l ook like that it would survive . And I had 
to walk the rest o f the journey, because the horse was~Q~~f.into 
Jacobs River in to deep water a nd tried to wash it down . and 
there was blood a nd a big gash - but somehow he finished the trip 
a ll right. 
KH: That is right , the old access was via Jacobs River, 
wasn't it? 

TS: Yes. 
KH: There was n o road in. 
TS: Well, t here was a bridle track. Ther~ was a jeep 
track as far as Jacobs River, and from ther~n was a bridle 

track , But without me knowing at that stage, about two weeks 
after this trip , they let me know from Cooma , "Now, you. are in 
charge, so build a road to the Tin IYlines," So they said , "We 

will get the power - you get three Poles-" yes, I had three 
Poles there . 

KH : Three what ? 
TS : Poles , Polish fe llows. 
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KH: Ah, yes. 

TS: Three Poles, and an Irish bulldozer driver, "and you 

build a road . " 

KH: 
chainman. 

TS: 

Oh, I see . That was a quick promotion from a clerk to 

Well, that was the way the Snowy operated. 

somebody showed some kind of prowess, they used him . 

As soon as 

They were 

fantastic. That was Sir William Hudson; he was a fantastic man . 

He forced everybody - "Use him. If he has any promise, use him." 

KH: That was his dictum? 
TS: Yes. Sir William Hudson, very soon, when I started 

with the Snowy I was the lowest paid employee. He learned that I 

already am agitating for Thredbo. And he called me to his of-

rice, and all my bosses said, "He is going to sack you because 

you are not supposed to have any other interests in the Snowy ." 

And he said . "We are building the road; we will seal it as soon 

as we can . And if you ever need anything in relation to Thredbo, 

come direct to me." 

KH: That is interesting. Why would he do that, I wonder? 

TS: He liked the mountains to come alive, the potential of 

the mountains . And any functions originally - he would come 

there, anything which had anything to do with promotion. He 

liked public relations very much. It was his ideas, those public 

relations trips by the buses . 

tains. 

He wanted to promote the moun-

KH: He had a fantastic public relations department. The 

way they churned out little plastic models, brochures, pamphlets , 

trips for schoolchildren. 

TS: Yes. And the buses, all the time, buses. They accom-

modated all that. This is only later, after I became established 

in the mountains, I had, not really an argument with him, but 

sort of friendly discussion. I wanted a little bit of his busi-

ness off those buses. And he wanted to keep them all by himself, 

every - these camps like Island Bend and Cabramurra and all of 
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them had very nice accommodation for buses . And I tried to talk 
him into letting me have a little bit of it . A~d I achieved that. 
KH : Did you? 

TS: Yes. At one stage I was open year round and almost 

every day of the year I had a bus .. 
KH: Did you? And they were people coming to look at the 

Snowy Scheme? 
Yes. TS; 

KH: But otherwise, all those visitors were all accommodated 
at the big camps? 

TS: 
KH : 

At the camps, yes. 

Fed at the canteens. 
TS: They were very nicely built, those accommodation - very 

warm and comfortable. Good food and plenty of it . It was an in-
teresting time, although I spent on l y four years there. 

was so interesting that It was so free of any industrial 
But it 

problems. Everbody was glad to go ahead, and nobody asked for 

higher wages, better conditions. 

monious. 
And everything was just har-

KH: 
said that 

I was talking to Danny Collman the other day, and he 
he showed me a photo of the wooden base, the sled, 

that the motor was mounted on, I think, for that first lift at 
Thredbo, that was dragged up the hill. Apparent l y he built the 

base. Do you remember that? It is a big wooden sled thing. He 
must have towed it up the hillside . 

TS: Yes , that would have been - that'57 one. Yes, that was 

quite correct. It was a very heavy motor , and it was pushed by 

manpower, only manpower pushed it up . 

KH: 
TS : 

KH: 
TS : 

Pushed it up the hill? 
Up the hill, yes . 

-"that big thing? 

Yes. I don ' t know if it is the same one, but if it is 

the one which started the middle slopes at Thredbo, it must be 

the one. Otherwise , 1 58, we had a lot of trouble getting the 
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first generator in not the generator, but the motor for the 

chairlift. A lot of trouble. It was bogged here in Wollondi.bly 
for a long time. And when it arrived, it arrived when it was 
snowing, and we had to build a kind of ramp out of earth to un-
load it. 
KH: 
TS: 

There were no facilities, no cranes, no nothing. 
Now they fl y the pylons in with a helicopter. 

Our generator, which arrived at Thredbo in 1957 wa s in 
a tent, and that one took about two months to arrive, becau se it 
was bogged here in Wollondil~y. 
TS: And when you worked for the Snowy, what was the first 
camp you stayed at? What was your first base? 
TS: Well, the first year the_fused me for these kind of 
jobs, like building the road . 

KH: Ou t to the Tin '»:ines . 
TS: Up to the Tin Mlnes, a pd we had to establish our camp. . . . ~r., 
We were given tents, and 4-itfl. .~)'\ and once a week I took the r-~~ 
wagon to Jindaby ne to buy supplies for the fellows. And we used 
to shoot kangaroos and catch trout, and eat anything what came 
along. So I was just from camp to camp. I was in Nimmo Camp. 
From Nimmo I built several gauging stations on the Gung~rlin 

But the next winter, they 
put me in charge of Spencer's Creek Met station. 
you know where it was? 

That was - do 

KH: Yes, o n that little knoll. 
TS: Yes. So I had that, a nd two Czechs working with me. 
That was very interesting, measuring snow, water, A lot of 

skiing, I mean, a lot of 0P~. ,:),I'~.,· We averagea 10 kilometres a 
day. And it is not easy to average with blizzards and all that. 
Right through the winter that was our average. 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 
TS; 

huts. 

So mostly you were in tents? 
No, no. That was at -
At Spencer's Creek you had huts. 

Yes, Spencer's Creek we had huts, very comfortable 
But before that it wa s tents, and sometimes camps. There 
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was a camp at Nimmo where there was accommodation . 
KH: 
TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

cabins. 
TS: 

Was that near Nimmo Hill? 
It was right on Eucumbene River. 
Oh yes, on the road in. 

Yes, on the road in. 
Near that bridge. 
Yes. 

Oh, I see. 

Just downstream of the bridge. 

So some of them were established camps with little 

Yes. As long as they were close enough so that we 
could sort of go to the work from there, in a reasonable time. 
Otherwise it was tents. Like Jacobs River was tents. 
KH: 
TS: 
KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

case. 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

They were double-skin tents, were they? 
·V~. heavy tents. 

Heavy canvas. 
Yes, very heavy tents. 

With an outer sort of roof over the top, I think. 

I do not remember exactly, but it could have been the 
We had a lot of trouble with rats, of course. 

Rats? 

Yes. 

What, getting into food supplies and things? Did you? 

Biting. 
Biting you? 
Yes. 

Oh yes, really? 

I d on 't know what we used to do. We used to dig a 
trench around and put kerosene into it, I think, or diesel, some-
thing like that. They had no floors, these tents. 
KH: Oh, right, they would come in under the sides. But 
they were that bad. They would bite you in the night? 
TS: Oh, they were obnoxious. When I was doing Thredbo 
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there was a hut at Dea d Horse Gap - those rats, Jesus, they were 

biting! 
KH: 

Another hut I used to sleep at Snowy Plains, also rats. 

Really? Because I mean I have heard them at night. 

have slept in the huts. But almost never got bitten. 

TS : 
often. 

But they crawl over you every now and then, not very 
But it is possibly the memory which remains ingrained, 

that you were bitten by a rat, 

I 

KH: I know , it is an awful thought, It is hard enough just 

going to sleep knowing that there are going to be rats in the 

night, It is an awful thought. 

TS: We are going - a party of friends, we are going camping 

this week Snowy Plains, And I cautioned them to be ready 

for the rats, 

KH: 

time? 
TS: 

Are you going to take a tent with a floor in it this 

Probably. 

KH: And you. al so spent some time at Cabramurra, but that wtt..S 

later? 
TS : Well, after this winter, they asked me to go to 

Cabramurra, and I became the regional hydrographic officer, which 

was quite a big promotion, from chainman second class! Which I 

did , and I had then a team of - I think it was five teams . I had 
one team in Geehi, one team in G:.1,.1t,tp1>,

1
,S ·camp; one team in £.ob ' s 

Hole, and ou.r own team - that is fou.r teams. And I had to sort 

of organise them. The Geehi one went as far as Tom Groggin , all 

the stations around there, Geehi area, and top sta~ions . 
Cou,~n's Camp - sometimes I had to travel through Victoria to 

&wombat's Creek on the other side, t he beginning of Murray River, 

Everyone had big regions. And we had to keep them supplied . 

of course very often there was a little bit of sport in it , 
had a frienaycompetition with the drillers, whose, vehicle can 

cross the Tumu.t River at the highest possible level. 

KH: How many vehicles did you lose? 

TS: One day it was very high , Of course, I knew the 

And 

We 
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levels, and I took up our wagon and in the middle, of course, I 

started to float down. And on the other side - we were in con-
tact by radio - waiting for supplies, the Couikn Camps fellows 
with a Land Rover, they could not cross Wi~ -~Land Rover, so I 
tried to give them supplies by water . But it was winter, bloody 

. A•~,;., 4!"1 ,._h I freezing/ ... /\' ... so there was absolute no other way than get out 
into the water ; get the winch out with the other side, and winch 

it out, 

KH: 

TS: 
funny 

You. winched it across? 
Yes , yes . It was a ll r i ght . For some reason, I had a 

underneath, I had funny pyjamas underneath, and it was 

cotton pyjamas , An d as I got wet the sleeves started to be 

longer and lon ger. And the trousers . And I could not move be-

cause I did not want to undress because i t was cold enough . 

KH: 

TS : 
KH: 

Bu.t you. did not have to wade through the river? 

Yes , yes, 
Oh , YOU did. You had to wade through it, the flooded 

Tumut River. 
TS; Yes, I had to wade through it . That was Tumut Pond. 

There was no bridge. 
KH: You could not throw a rope across and pull a wire over 

or something? You just had to 

TS: I had to go through the river to start with, because I 

was in the middle of the river, and the current was very strong . 

KH: Right, So did you lose that vehicle? 

TS : No, no, no . The vehic l e was there, but stuck on rocks 

in a very high current. And there was no way £or me to get out. 

So I had to go i n to the water , 

KH : Of course, t hat is right, you were stalled, yes . 

TS: No t s t alled, it was bogged . It was. bogged on the 

rocks, It got hu~ on rocks, anr:\ it was a very heavy vehicle, . 
those power wagons - they are {,\ _ l>od~e... . And the only way for me 

was to bring the vy1r,1C,r', • • to the other side and then the fellows 

were able to he l p me. They had their own Land Rovers mobile, and 
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they winched me out then. 

KH: 
water? 
TS: 

And who got the award for going through the highest 

Oh, we were leading, After that, I lost track . But we 

definitely led for that one. 

KH : Did you do much overtime? D,d you work much overtime? 

TS : I did not want to, because I liked my free t i me . I was 

working at that stage all the time already on Thredbo, and I 

needed all the free time - I needed all the weekends . My family, 

wife and child were living here, in what was cal l ed New Jindab-
yne, the Fitness C amp . So I wanted every weekend for myself , We 

were offered . Sometimes we had to when there were floods,because 

we had to measure floods. But I did not want any overtime. 

KH : Oh, I see. When there was a lot of rain, there was 

more work. 
TS: 
KH: 
TS: 

Oh yes, yes. 
Everybody out and measure the stream flow . 

Yes. Because the floods are very important to 

register, to get the ~vr,v~ . . . . . . you know. Hydrography depends on 

establishing ~~0/f . . . of the flow, and with a certain amount of 

the height of the river, they want to get the(~'~···· right , so 
that in future reference they know when there i s so much rain, 
with so much snow, how much power generation, how much irrigation 

wa ter will be available. And we h ad to establish that. 

KH : "e . . . There were1automatic recording devices? 

TS: There were. There were recording devices for the 

height of the water, but not recording the flow of the water. 

KH : The speed? 

TS : Yes . Not the flow, not the amount of the water. 

were recording devices to record the height in the pool . 

There 
But, 

assumin g it was very high reading , say two metres reading, two 
metres height in the reading, and it was very high , we still had 

to go into the water with our instruments and measure the actual 

cubic feet per second, it was in those days. How many cubic feet 
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per second . We stil l had to do that. With b i g rivers like 
Snowy, and Tumut, lower down we had flying foxes across them. 
And we did it from the flying foxes with big weights. That is why ,n 
our t eam'Geehi - they had to go to Murray River at Tom Groggin, 
they had to have the vehi c l es because these weights were very 
heavy. And it took up to 16 hours to g e t from Geehi to Tom Grog-
gin, winching when it was wet and very bad track. 

struments were pretty heavy. 
But the in-

KH: Oh , I see. So that the best times for the gauging were 
also the worst times for getting around, because it was t he wet 
time. 

TS: Yes, yes . We had plen ty of gaugings, to finish, to 
have the lower part of the ~Uf~ . • . • because it was the easiest one . 
So it was only confirmation of what we knew already anyhow. But 
for the higher ones it had to be done . My first year at 
Spencer ' s Creek. I was the only one there. But it was a funny 
winter, '54, and there was plenty of snow . It started to rai n like 
hell in August. And we had to go out and do the gaugings. The 
Snowy broke out completely, and started to run over the top of 
the snow, and then take the snow with that, and we had to try 
somehow to measure that, which is not easy . We did not know how 
much water flows under and how much bYec the snow . Of course, 
quite often in winter we fell in the water . We had to dig out t he 
creeks with shovels, and then start to measure it . We had waders 
with us . But every now and then we had ledges t o support us, and 
the ledge wou ld fall down and we would fall in the water, and 
then from Wil kinson ' s Valley we had to go in the wet gear back to 
Spencer's Creek to warm up . But it was interesting. 
KH: Yes. But a lot of that was on skis , wasn ' t it? 
TS: Oh, that was on skis . 
KH: But you had your waders in the pack with you? 
TS : Wait a minute , we did not have waders . No, no , we did 
not have waders. No, we did not have waders because they would 
have been too heavy. No, we did not. We tried to get first a 
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section across the creek free of ice, and then dig a kind of ramp 
alongside the section on which we could stand. One has to 

measure every one and a half feet or so, the flow of the water. 

And that is what would have happened. These ramps which we built 
~- "4-'e,v/i{ c.,/o/~ 
KH : Out o$now? 
TS: 

KH : 
TS: 
KH: 

You built ramps out of snow. 

Yes, out of snow. They would collapse. 

Yes , like an artificial weir. 

Yes. 
A weir built out of snow. 

TS: It was only to support the body, only to support us, 
because the depth of the snow was too much: we could not reach 
wi t h o ur instruments. We had to be close to the water to measure 
it . Our instruments were not built that way that you could stand 
- and of course, you would be digging for three hours, snow, and 

then measure the water and fall in the water. 
KH: 
TS: 
KH: 

Oh, dear oh dear! 
And go back to Spencer's Creek to warm up. 
You did not have a change of clothes. 

TS: 
KH: 

Sometimes we had. But we did not count much o n this. 
Were you issued with special gear by the SMA? 

TS: We were, yes. We had gear, we had quite good gear . 
The skis were reasonable. They were sort of touring skis. I 

remember that fu~n~ pairs of skis I got , it had hollows in it, and 
the hollows filled with water. And every step it was, chunk, 

chunk. chunk! But the boots were a ll right, because we did a lot 
of walking, I have somewhere a picture here. That would hav~ 
typical trip. We had the instruments for measuring snow, and in-

side the rucksacks we wou ld have the instruments for measuring 
the flow. And this was a trip a t kvnnmn Hut - some friends 
were there and we were passing by on the way to work - it might 

· J. Uur,e~ 
have been Club Lake !Jlf<:,t;:,. -:f:. ,'11!':' . 1/\ . . This fellow became then 
Australian champion cross country, because he had plenty of 
training. 
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KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

Who was that? . 

Jake Rosedale. He still works for the Snowy. 
Jake? 

TS: Rosedale. 

KH : Rosedale. I have not heard of him. And that is YOU in 
the front. 
TS : Yes. 
KH : So, did you keep any pets at all, like a cat or a dog? 
Any at that time? 
TS: 

spaniel . 
I had - when I was with t he hydrology, I had a cocker 
And he went with me everywhere, on those Thredbo in-

vestigation trips , over the Main ~ange , and as much as possible 
he always he seemed to enjoy it very much, but always got cut 
feet from the ice and snow, always bled. 
KH : 
TS: 
TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
KH : 

TS: 

here. 
KH: 

He always ran behind you? 
Yes. You did not put him in your pack? 
No, no. 

I see. That was a very hardy dog. 

Yes. And then somebody poisoned him here in Jindabyne. 
What, some years later? 
During tho s e days. Some farmers did a lot of baiting 

Were there many cats or dogs in the camps? Did many 
people have pets? 
TS: I do not remember. This dog stayed in Jindabyne here, 
because that was where we lived. 
have seen any, 

And I do not r~member whether I 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 
KH: 

TS: 

At Cabramurra? 

There must have been, but I do not remember. 

You do not remember many cats and dogs? 
No , I don't. 

Did you have a garden anywhere at all? 
We had a little patch here in Jindabyne. But again , I 

visited only over the weekends, and always very busy with Thredbo 
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at that stage. 
KH: So you had two jobs for a while, in a way, didn't you? 
TS: Well, yes. 
KH: 
TS: 

Two major interests. 
Yes, yes. 

KH: What were the mountains like when you first came to the 

hotel in the early 50s? Like, I am trying to get some idea of 
whether the mountains were eroding; whether they had been 

burning; how the mountains compared then in the early 50s to now, 
35 years later. 
TS: I did not take any notice, because it was not my train-
ing, not my interest. What struck me quite a lot, the amount of 
fences, right on the top of the mountains, which by now I think 
they have just rotted away. There is plenty of them still 
around , I know that, but that struck me. 

so much fencing done in the mountains? 
KH: Did you see much stock? 

TS: I nteresting - very, very little. 

How come that there was 

But one thing which 
lies very much in my mind is, we had gauging station at 

Cootapatamba Creek - you know where it is, Cootapatamba? 
KH: Yes, yes. 

TS: And that one was much lower down than the lake is, much 
lower down, about another 5 kilometres below Cootapatamba Lake, 
downstream. 
KH: 
TS: 

Where the hut is? 
No, still more. 

KH: Further down, yes, that is right. OK. 

TS: Further down. And there was a herd of cattle right 

through the winter. And every time we went - we went, I think, 
every two w-eeks to do a. gauging. Every time we. went, the herd 

was still th~re, and obviously none the worse for the experience. 

KH: They were still getting feed under the snow? 
TS: They were shifting slowly. They must have been getting 
feed under the snow. Sort of, you could see how they were shift-
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ing, but through that valley you could see down to Thredbo, all 
the green at Thredbo Valley . It struck me they must be bloody 
stupid that it has not occurred to them to shift to the lower 
slopes. 
KH: 
KH: 

But they survived. They definitely survived. 
How many were there? 
About 15, I would say. And even before that - my first 

year at Kosciusko Chalet, there was a stranded horse at what we 
called Foreman's Hut, I think. 
KH: Oh yes, where the chimney still is, yes. 

TS: Yes. And that horse survived the whole winter there, 
as high up as that. 

KH: 
TS: 
KH: 
TS: 

Really? 
Yes. 

A horse by itself, 

Good heavens. 

at Foreman's Hut. 

And then in springtime, we made a track for him, by 
feet, and put hay , and he followed and we got him to Kosciusko 
Chalet. And he grew through the winter amazingly long hair. I 
never seen a horse like that. And then in summer, the staff 
tried to ride it. We had quite a few horses at the Chalet at 
that time, but nobody was able to ride that horse. 
KH: Do you think it was a brumby? I mean, do you think it 
was a wild one? 
TS: I don't know. I don't think so. Wild ones - the 
highest I saw a wild one was at Island Bend. I neuer seen any 
brumbies any higher. Of course, there were plenty ~f · lin Mines. 

KH: Yes, I was going to say, yes, that is right. It is 

also unusual that it was just one horse. 
roam in groups, I think. 

The brumbies usually 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

I did not know 
Did you see any cattle and sheep out Tin Mines way? 

No. Brumbies, kangaroos. 
No cattle and sheep by then. 
No. 

That is interesting. Did you meet any stockmen? 
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TS: Not on the - I am trying to think how many trips I made 

to Tin Mines. It would not have been more than half a dozen, and 

I have never seen any stock there, no. 

KH: 
TS: 
KH: 
remember. 
TS: 
KH: 
fire? 

TS: 

Did you see much evidence of fire, of burning? 

I don't remember that, no. 
It is all right, it does not matter. You don't have to 

Yes, yes. 
What about up Cabramurra way? Did you see much sign of 

Un l ess one takes more notice of things - I was not 

asked to take any notice - but as one - all of a sudden it occurs 
to me that - why, for instance, there are thesa big trees in the 

gulleys, and all the trees seem to be the same age on the ri~s. 
And then one learns that it was before there were fires. And 
then also the original investigation of Thredbo, that I remember 
very well, you know, just walking through the bush, very thick 

u ndergrowth, you all the time kick into long old burnt logs. 

That must have been the bush fires. But at that stage, already 

all the slopes seemed to have a growth of trees which were about 

the same age. Except in the gulleys where there were stands of 

mountain ash, beautiful , which were obviously preserved against 

the bush fires. 

KH: Was there much soil erosion? I mean, was there much 

bare ground? 

TS: I don't remember that. But at the stage when the Park 

banned grazing, naturally I was all over the mountains all the 

time, I noticed that there was soil erosion. 

year it was. 

I don't know which 

KH: That was '57, that is right. Towards the end of your 

time with the SMA, That is right, that is when a lot of the 

grazing leases were phased out. 

TS: 
publicity. 

That is when I started to take notice, because it got 
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KH: Yes. Do you think the Snowy Mountain Scheme caused 

much erosion in its construction? 

TS: I have not noticed any. I have not noticed any, and I 

often think about it. I think that - the way I see it, it is a 

better place than it was before. Although I regret a few 
stretches For F.-sh1·~ . . .. it used to be very interesting. A few 
stretches of river here, the Snowy, which was lost through this. 
I think the positive is much, much, much, surpasses the negative, 

whatever happens. 

KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

There are more positives than negatives? 
Yes, oh yes, definitely. 
Do you remember some of the rivers and creeks running 

brown because of si lt and mud, and so on? 
Well , it was our job as well. We measured the silt as TS: 

well. And naturally, there would be more silt after a flood than 

there would be at other times. But we never learned the results, 

because we sent the bottles to scientific services, and they ana-

l ysed the results. 

KH : And what do you feel about - the SMA, stabilising road 
batters and disturbed areas, used a lot of introduced species, 

so-cal l ed exotics. Do you think they could have used more 

natives? I mean, this is -

TS : It never occurred to anybody. We were Europeans and we 

very much liked the look of European trees, seeing them. So it 

was pleasing for us . Like Island Bend, well, it is all exotics 

there. And it obviously has done the job very well, stabilising 

the road. 
KH : 

And it definitely does not offend European eyes. 

I mean, it is just today, now, that it is - well, it 
became a National f ark many years ago, but today, you know, na -

tional parks are seen to be more a place where you have natives 
species, and you get rid of introduced species. But I suppose, 

well, there was very little knowledge about propagating native 

species, back in the 50s. 

very logical. 

So I guess poplars and willows were 
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TS: I don't know what was the views of the boss of the 

Snowy at that stage. But he would have used anything which did 

the job, and he would have tried to please people who had some 
ideas and knew something about it, and that must have been the 

case. There are still some places where nobody knows - I gue s s 

and I am almost sure, I know pockets of introduced species which 

I like very much. Like little pine growth near Dainer's Gap, 

that nobody knows about it. 
KH: Yes , I saw them . I came - on the left of Dainer's Gap, 

going up, is it? On the left side. 
TS: No, there is not any on the side, goi ng down . 

one which I have not seen! 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

And Dainer's Gap is after the hotel? 

Yes. 

You saw 

TS: 

Yes, the one after the hotel . 
No, I am not aware of that one . There is a track down 

off to the reservoir, to _RC1 i,"lbo.-J · Lake. 
is? 

You know where that one 

KH: Yes. 
TS: Yes , somewhere there? 
KH : No, just a little bit past, on the pass . You go up to 

the left and looking back towards the Main Range , but up on the 
left, there are - I saw five or six sma ll pine trees. 

TS: Did you? 
KH: Some had been cut down some years ago. But they have 

come up again. I was so surprised. 
TS: 
KH: 

TS: 
he did it, 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

You know Dane Wi mbush? 

Yes , I know Da~e W~rnbush . 
He used to have an experimental place there. 

l I don t know. 
I saw the steel pegs where the plots were, 

Yes, that was it. 

Whether 

Yes, I saw those , yes. But I was so surprised. Sud-

denl y I saw these pine trees. 
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TS: Well, I am not aware of that one. And I know of 

another one. 
KH: 
TS: 

Oh, do YOU , all right . 
This one is much older. I use it for Christmas tree . 

I just take the top off and the next few years it has got two 
tops. So one can tell that I was there. 
KH : I see. Is that in that area too? 
TS: Generally, yes. 1200 feet this one is. 
KH: Were they planted by the SMA, as trials? 
TS : Yes, they were . I don't think it was trials , I think 
- it might have been trials, because this particular spot, which 
is my secret spot, is all kinds of trees. And I believe it was 
the first Snowy camp to build the road down to Island Bend . 

KH : Right . Yes, there is certainly a lot of exotics around 
the place. 
TS: But, of course, you notice exotics when you drive along 
the road, because the roads were built, stab~ised by exotics. 
KH: That is right . And so, what would you say was the big-
gest change in the bush over the 35 years? Like, if you. were to 
say any t hing about comparing the amount of tree cover, shrubs, 
grasses , the state of the country t oday, compared to when you 
first saw it , or what you remember of it? 
TS : Well, if it is the high country, I think the high 
country i s better off, because it is definitely stabilised. I 

mean, above the tree line. And I would h ave to think about the 
medium country, because I don't really see much difference . 
KH: No . 
TS: The smell is still there, yes, of the bush. And there 
are sti l l dead trees lying around, dying naturally , and branches 
broken off , and still feels well under foot . I do not see much 
difference . 
KH : 

TS : 

KH: 

You are a keen stream fisherman, are you.? 

Yes . 

You must have regretted the damming of some of the 
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rivers like the Snowy? 

TS: Some of it, yes. As I mentioned, these stretches here 

around Jindabyne, they disappeared. But again, I have these 
problems personally with my ••• I am not as mobile as I used 

to be, and started to be more;Lake fisherman, of course. 
KH: You ju.st sit in a boat. Would you say that the over-

all, the total fish population is now much greater, or less? 

TS: Oh, of course it is. 
KH: 
TS: 
doubt. 

Because of the l akes? 
Of course, there is no doubt about it. Absolutely no 

Graham Chalker and I, when we went first time to Thredbo, 
fishing, and he was already a good fisherman. I was just learn-
ing only about fishing. We fished from the horse. And we, in 

all that expedition, we caught three trout. Now, if you go fish-
ing to Thredbo, Thredbo River, you have 10 trout in no time. 
KH: Really? 
TS: Yes. And better size . No doubt about it. 
KH : And that is because of the l ake acting as a feeding 
body, they move out from the lake. 
TS: 
sizes . 
years. 

Yes . And sizes, oh, I used to catch some very good 
I must open this box which I have not opened for six 

Just at Bullock ' s Hut a year ago, an eight pounder on a 
fly, which is quite a fish. So they are here and - - -
KH: I suppose the sewage from Thredbo might be helping a 
little bit. 
TS: It is possible. That is quite possible. 
KH : More food, more feed, . t:S-more insects./\There were trout 
heads on this. 
KH: Oh, I see. It has all come apart, has it, they have 
rotted away. 
TS: It is funny that they lasted so long. Then there was a 
wall at Sponar ' s - this one was (pil<J'+ at Thredbo in 5 5, four pound 
four ounces. They lasted so well. 
KH: And now they have had it. There is very little smell, 
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Just a bit fishy. 

TS: Maybe it has never had access to air Yes, 
there is no doubt about it. There are stories of expeditions to 
Geehi from Kosciusko Chalet on horses. I walked with thi s fel-
low, one summer from the Tops along 
the Lady Ncrth·C<il-e'.s Canyon into Geehi, which was a bloody horrible 

trip. There are waterfalls, and it was terrible, because we 
ll ~II S/pr 

could not find n4f/!H~~ and so we slept at Geehi, and tried to 
fish. We did not catch anything. And the next morning, we 
thought it would be much better if we follow the Townsend West 
Spur, get on the West ~ur first place, and then follow the spur. 
Which was not a bad idea once you are on the spur. But to get to 
the spur through these saplings, which are so close, with a 
rucksack on the back, steep like that, and every step you s lid 
down and bush close against you. I became ill several times. I 

had tuberculosis, and this was one of those trips which caused an 
outbreak again. 
KH: 

TS: 
KH: 

TS: 

months. 
KH: 

TS: 
ter 195 2 , 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

On the trip? 
No, no, later. 
Right. 

At that stage, and I had to go hospital for five 
No, nine months. 

I see. Gee, that is pretty bad . 
Yes, nine months it was. More or less !>';"',,-/. of the win-

I was in Bonegilla Ho~~~tal for nine months. 
Oh really, at the u~~r-i•htJ there? 
Yes. 
I see. That is a pretty major illness, to be in hospi-

tal for nine months. 
TS: It was. But it was incurable at that stage. And then 
I had another spell in'63. 
spell. 

Again, I worked too hard, got another 

KH: You are lucky to be alive, in a way . It used to kill 
people, didn't it? 
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TS Oh . very much , very much. I was lucky that 
we,e 

when I got it first time, there/'\already antibi o tics which 
they used at that stage. And then they found much better things 

to cure it. But even in 63, the last time I got it, they advised 

to have operation, remove by surgery, because I was too active. 

they said, and you will always get again. 
KH: 

TS: 
KH : 

And did you have an operation? 
r had 1.t~~ .. yes, they removed $~0'\e.c.f."'>j k)l"ly I 

So you had some of your lung removed ? 
TS: Yes . That was in 163 . So I had all these stop and goes 
all the time. 

KH : Yes . right . Sometimes the green light and sometimes 
t he red light. Well, you would not · have had much more time to do 
anything else, I suppose , if you were in terested in Thredbo, and 

you were working on the SMA . And you also did fishing. Were 
there any other hobbies you had? 
TS : Well, after - that film making was a h obby . No doubt 
about that. After that, and I thought it wa s a nice time to 

finish it, after I wo n the Australian Film Award, I started 
seriously sailing , seriously. I first got a smaller boat. Sti ll 
have got in Jindabyne, and t ook it to sea , and tried to dare 
myself to go out t o islands and things like tha t . It worked , so 
I bought a bigger one , and t h en I made some major trips, to 

.,-; C\ Ca(edon,a as.mrr1 • .1 •• New Zealand, Tahiti, Tonga, .. ... . and things like that . 
KH: 
TS: 

KH : 
TS : 

KH : 

Were they by yourself or with a c rew ? 

Half of it alone, and half of it with a crew. 

So you d on 't mind being alone at sea? 
No. 

So you did not mind being alone in the mountains 
either, I s uppose, from time to time? 
TS : Not at a ll. I remember t h e day when Ku nama Lodge was 
destroyed by an avalanch e . It was ~6, and I travelled fro m Kos-
c iusko Chale t over the Main Ra n ge, to what is now Thredbo , there 
was nothing yet . And I was alone, and the blizzard was coming 
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from the east , which was most unusual. I had a compass and I saw 
that something was wrong . I t was bl izzard, a good one f\O ll,;54.bd,f1 a\ o~ 

and the next day I was in Jindabyne ne xt day and hear d about the 
d i saster . It was an easterly blizzard which accumu l ated - the 
cornice above Y.uhama and which broke off and 
KH : A very unusual direction fo r a blizzard . Very unusual. 
TS : Yes . I t hought I got lost, YOU know. because I thought 
there was something wro n g with my compass/ 
KH: It always comes from the west o r the southwest . 
TS : Yes. And I did all t hese trips alone , the investiga-
tion trips t o Thredbo . 
KH: 

the SMA? 

TS : 

KH : 
TS: 

Did You have many parties wh e n you were working with 
Like social entertainment? 
Oh yes , yes . 

That went on . 

Oh Yes , every now and then somebody was leaving, so 
there was a big party , a nd Christmas party. And when we started 
at Sponar's , Isl a nd Bend was very we ll goin g, very well goi ng . 
And they h ad a very nice community hall cum picture theatre . And 
the fel l ow in charge o f public relations organised i t - wa s doing 
a very good job, and we had fan tastic parties there . And a lway s 
the boss wo u l d arrive and talk to everybod y, and everybody would 
have gre at fun . 
week, pictures, 

And not only par ties, 
movies . And of course, 

but there were twice a 
there wa~ no television , 

and very good movies they always had, up to date. And that was 
very good social experience . And those movies had to go thro ugh . 

When there was Bundilla Camp - it was not very far from Bullock~ - Fite/-

(end of tape) 
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TS : 

through. 
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Sorry, what was that? To get the picture through . 

Pictures - that was the rule, the pictures must get 

And one day the Land Rover got bogged . It could not 

move, so they called the bulldozer and took half of the Land 

rover away ...... pict~res . 

KH: The Land Rover was so badly bogged , that i t came in 

half, it tore in half? 

TS : 

them 

Yes, a lot of stories - I don ' t know whether any of 

whether all or any were true . But I was led to believe 

that at Munyang they had to leave the bulldozer which t hey coul d 

not get out of the bog . So they left it there and built over it . 

KH : Really? 

TS: That 1 · s the story . There were very good stories al l 

the time. 

KH: Frank Rodwell told me of two bulldozers getting bogged 

near that camp at Bondilla, and they had to bring a third one . 

That was the last one they had, in order to get the other two 

out . Do you remember any gambling in the camps, or 

There was gambling at Island Bend. 

gambling , and prostitution for a little while . 

bust up pretty soon . 

There was organised 

£ut it was always 

KH: Oh, was it? 

TS: Yes . They would arrive from Sydney and have a nice 

time for a little while . But it would have been - Island Bend 

h a d quite a bit of gambling - it f l ourished quite a l o t . 

not the type, so I don't know , but I knew the organisers . 

organised . 

KH: 
TS: 

KH : 

Did you g o rabbit shooting? 

Yes . 

Were there many rabbits around? 

I am 

It was 

TS: I started rabbit shooting and got sick of it very soon 

because it was - mxyomatosis was very bad. And once YOU killed 

one sick one, then you don't want to eat any more ·rabbits . I 

s hot rabbits and I shot kang a roos, but the same story , I did not 

want to do it - so . 

Plains? 

There were many rabbits. You know Snowy 
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KH: Yes. 

TS: Jesus, were there rabbits ! It was bad . Now that we 

talk about it, yes, there was a lot erosion d u e to rabbit s . 

KH: 

TS: 

were b a re , 

KH : 
TS : 
l•(H : 

TS : 

In the Snowy Plain s . 
Snowy Plains and 

completely bare . 

Kiandra had it bad, 

And we at Sponar's. 

With rabbits ? 

area . 

other - it was pieces of land which 

too, didn ' t it , I think? 

unbelievable it was , at one stage . 

Unbelievable. I used to joke. '.'i:t I throw a brick out 

of the window I am bound to kill ten rabbits ~ I used to make 

this joke. 

KH : 

TS : 

But then they disappeared . 

Really ? 

'.:t'.es . They ate everything; it was bare; I tried to have 

nice playgrounds with flowers and everything was eaten away. 

KH : 
TS : 

KH : 
TS : 
Kl-I : 

TS: 

Are there an y photos of these rabbits ? 

No, I never seen any. 

I have never seen any. 

No, I have never s een any . 

It is so hard to believe . That is quite cold there . 

Yes . I may have forgotten about the rabbits if I did 

not remember this joke which I created. 

geration. but -

It was a slight exag-

KH : Well . even if it was on ly half true, it is still a lot 

of rabbits. You would hit five rabbits with one brick ins tead of 

ten. 

TS: 
That is pretty good . 

Animals never came as high as Sponar's . Once a kan-

garoo was killed down off Guthega , but that is the o nl y one I 

remember , as I said. And once there was a emu right on Dttner' s 

Gap. 

KH: Oh, was there? An emu on Dainer's Gap? 

from the Snowy , I suppose , down from the g~~ge. 

TS: On $.c~n-.z.-. , Gap , not Dainer ' s - . Re,""~X 
KH: Gap. 

Well, come up 

Gap . 



216 7 

Tony Sponar 

TS: Re.M1e..x 

K H : Q.e." o ~)( Gap I am with you , oh yes . What about wild 

horses, did they come up Digger ' s Creek? 

TS: Wel l, I saw one wild horse . I was fishing at Island 

Bend and I saw it on the other bank, on the left bank. 

KH: Only down at Island Bend. They never came up - only 

one you saw down there. 

TS : 

J<H: 

Only one . 

Ever? 
TS : Ever, yes . It n ever had a reputation that says there 

should be wild horses on that side of the Snowy there . P l enty of 

. .. .. . . .. . .. came when we had our camp. and wild pigs . That was 

between Cabramurra and Tumbarumba . . . .. camp on the l eft bank of 

the Tumut . 

KH: Did anyone else go pig shooting , or -

TS: I don ' t remember . I don't re me mber. I would have 

liked to , but at that stage - and it was already when I was on 

the Snowy, I have given up shooting, and I was in the country . 

It was a fairly big pig country there . 

J<H : 

TS: 

Do you remember any fights between people at the camps? 

I don ' t remember , no. I think they were gen erally very 

harmonious. 

J<H : 

TS: 

KH: 

And you got on with your workmates all right? 

Oh yes, yes. 

I think the only main group that seemed to have 

squabbles was the S l ovens - was the two g r oups of Yugoslavs . 

TS : That is possib l e . 

KH : Apparently, people have told me t h ey u sed to be at each 

other at times. 

TS : But I never witnessed anything like that . When I was 

on the wages bracket with Snowy, I had to eat in the so-called 

wages barracks and sleep in the so-called wages barracks . When 

you become what was called staff, then you have staff accommoda-

tion and staff eating facilities, a n d staff bar, and everything . 
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So I moved out - with a ll t h ese people on the wages. you know , 

the labou rers and all t hat . I n ever noticed a n y disagreement 

anywhere . 

KH: Was t here a big difference between what the wages 

people got for -

TS : Money? 

KH : No, no . In terms of accommodation and food. 

TS : It was rougher . ~twas simpler. But again - even when 

I was on staff, and had to go in the field at two ca mps - well, 

there was no staff accommodation, so I h ad exact ly the same as 

the wages. 

KH : 

TS : 

KH : 

Did you ever meet Major Clews? 

Oh yes, oh y e s. 

What do you remember about him? 

TS : 

fun 

Jolly fellow . He went out of his way always to have 

typical - I would say typical - I think I know the type of 

these loners, and I am one of them . I can 

the expression - sociable and extrovert and all that . 
like that . 

KH : 
TS: 

Kl-!: 

But at other times, 

He was alone . 

very solitary . 

He was a bachelor , I think. 

. what is 

And he was 

TS: Yes . Most of the time he was living there alone . but 
YOU visited h im and he would do anything . 

garoos eat his towels -

KH: Kangaroos eat his towels? 

And stories ! How kan-

TS: 

talking . 

Yes , carried them away and eat his soap - never stopped 

And of course, he was probably two weeks without any 

human contact at all, 

KH : Apparent l y he had false teeth, or some t hing . 
to pop out every so often. 

TS : 

KH: 
TS: 

I don't know . That is qu i te possible . 

With al l his talking . 

Yes . 

They used 
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KH: 
TS : 
KH: 
TS: 

Were there any practical jokers? 

I was . 

What was your biggest practical joke? 

That one which I remember best is - we Czechs, we love 

all these very ripe, smelly cheeses , very stinky cheese. Impos-

sible stinky cheeses . And once I got a wrapper of - we always 

used to tea s e each other, the drillers , hydrographers and sur-

veyors . And once I noticed that nobody was in the drillers' of-

fice, so I got a wrapper of this stinky c heese and stuck it under 

the table in their office . About two days later they started to 

dig under the floor! Because we Czechs , we knew what it was 

there! 

KH : 
Oh, I did all the time something crazy. 

What else did you do? 

TS: I can't remember. But this one I can remember . I al-
wa ys pu lled somebody else's leg, yes . Plenty of them. 

KH : Did anyone ever pull your leg? And get away with it. 

TS: I don't remember. I seem to have spent a lot of time 

thinking about these practical jokes ..... . .... Oh, there were a 

lot of occasions , but I would have to think hard about it . 

KH: Apparently in one of the tunnels, when they made the 

last blast to break through , they dut an extra load of dynamite 

in, and all the dignitaries were there waiting for this big occa-

sion, and it blew all their hard hats off, and blew them all 

backwards a few feet. 

jokes I nave heard of, 
That was one of the biggest practical 

I don't know whether it was true. 
TS : There was not much contact, as I remember, between us 

outdoor people and those who were in the tunnels, for some 

reason. They had different camps, the tunnel people . 

KH: Oh, I see , yes, because they were contractors . They 

did not work for the SMA, did t h ey? 

TS : Some of them - some of the tunnels , I think, were done 
by SMA . I am almost certain they were . Because SMA a l ways used 

to boast when there was another world record i n tunnelling , and 
all t hat . And SMA used to get the credit for that . 
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KH: Oh, I thought most of t h e tunne l s were overseas con-
tractors - - -

TS: I may be wrong, but I know definitely the buildings, 
the dams were contract. 

KH : 

TS: 

Oh, I see. 

The tunnels you had better check on that one. 
think many were done by Snowy · 

KH : 
TS: 

Did the SMA look after you? 

In what way? 

I 

KH ; 
TS : 

In terms of your work conditions; in terms of - - -

There was no complaint. 
KH : Everyone seem to accept what was presented at that 
period in our history . 

TS : Yes, yes . About two or three yeas ago, a fellow called 
Oliver visited Cooma, he is old already, but still a high offi-

cial in t he Australian Workers Union . And he got for some reason 
b ig publicity from Cooma~Monaro Express, and all interviews. And 
he was saying how he used to nave - how the Australian workers 

Union in the earlys 50s was so well organised in the Snowy -
b loody bullshit! I never heard of one member of Australian 

Workers - or for that matter, any mischief at all done by the 
unions . I don't know why they published this, because it was not 
true, simply not tr ue. And I started right on the bottom . I 
would have heard something , in the four years . 

know there was no trouble ever. 
And as far as I 

KH : · There was some resentment , I think, about paying dues 
to the unions, wasn ' t there? Because then no-one ever saw them . 
TS : 

KH: 
TS: 

KH : 
TS: 

KH : 
TS: 

Nobody ever was asked. 

Oh, you did not have to pay? 

Not at all. 

Oh, I see. 

Not at all, nobody asked. 

So the unions were not active at all . 

Absolutely not . That is what I am saying . This man 
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Oliver, he claimed that everybody was a member of a union and how 

well organised they were. And it was not true. I never heard of 

any union member . And t hat is why I say I know nobody - you can 

ask Danny eol lman , for instance. He has been all the time with 

the Snowy , whether he ever heard anything about it. I was with 

them only four years, but Danny has been all the time . 

KH : Yes, that is right . Were you able to - if you h ad sug-

gestions for improving conditions, or doing things in a different 

way , or in a better way, were you able to - were they receptive? 

I mean , the bosses, were they receptive to new ideas? 

TS: 

KH : 

TS: 

You would not have any idea where to go. 

You would not? 
No. Absolutely none . We had n o complaints and I think 

people like me - I burned my bridges. I was a political r efugee 

a nd I could not go back there . And I was - that time when I was 

accepted by Austria (?) I had a l ready my first bout of tuber-

culosis . ~nd they took me despite that. They knew t hat . 

KH : Oh, they knew t hat? That you had already had t u ber-

culosis back in Austria .15 ·· And I was gratefu l that I had somewhere 

to go , that is talking for myself . 

KH : What sort of condition I mean, how did people get TB? 

Was it because of lack of proper food, or is it because of cold 

conditions . or - - -
TS : I don't know. It must be inclination - inheritance and 

inclination. I went into military service in 1947 and there wa s 
1/lt?W•~ c~I( v p 

a . ... . ..... of the lungs, not pictures taken . And I remember 

t hat the doctor, who was viewing , asked me whe ther I had any 

trouble ever. That is all what I remember. And when I applied 

for Australia in 48, in Innsbruck, they discovered a l read y a big 

hole in my lungs . I wen t 

with a 

for 5 month s to hospital, and it all 

closed, and I was, 
. 6,i'-

l J.. ttle of pushing from the Australian 

Commission , I was free to go. /\ 
KH: 

TS : 

So you were lucky in a way . 

Oh yes . 
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KH: You could have - then you would have had to stay in 

Au stria , I suppose . 

TS: We ll, there were countries already - were accepting 

these peop l e . 

KH : 

TS: 

peop le . 

KH : 
TS : 

KH : 
TS : 

KH : 

TS : 

You could have gone to Canada or - - -

Sweden accepted people, yes . 

Otherwi se , nobody in the world, 

No . 
v,JOIS 

Sweden was accepting 

Because it1 incurable at that stage , and contagious. 

Contagious? 
Oh yes . 

I see . 

Co ntagious a mong people - t hat is why they were so con-

cerned in Australia here, when it renewed, because in Australia 

there was very little known , tubercu l osis . Consequently , people 

did not hav e natural defences . And it was very , very catchin g . 
'·'hereac- 1· n Eu•·op th l t t l d f a,-.{_ · · ,v ... e ere were a o n a u.ra e ence~ immunities. 

And I read somewhere that some nations - I think it is Israelis -
do not get it at all , because they have so much immu nity in t heir 

bodies . 
KH : Did YOU smoke? 

TS : Ye s. yes . I smoked. 
KH : I suppose you had to give that. '-P? 
TS : I don ' t think that that much to do - I gave it up with 

the last bout in ~3 - 23 years ago. I gave it up, but I don 't 

think they objec;,ted to it that much . Never asked in the hospi-
1al'd 1: a loi ot +1~, 

ta l s ..... to stop smoking . 

KH: Yes. my mother, when we came to Australia - I remember 

my mother had to have her varicose veins removed , or partly 

removed . before we could come. 

TS : Before? 

KH : Before we could come to Australia. yes, back in 1953 , 

when she had - -

TS : 1'5 3 , you came? 
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KH: Yes. Well, we came in 154, but she had to have some 

operations before. So they had reservations about that. 

TS: 

l<H: 

TS: 

That is interesting. 

She was 43. 

How old was she then? 

43. Well, that is a stage where they still expect 

people to work, and I suppose varicose veins is a bit of a hand-
icap, 

KH: Although it has never handicapped my mother. She still 
walked to the top of Kosciusko last year. 

T.5: 

KH: 

TS 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

Did she? 

How old is-she was 75 then. 

75, that is very good, 

So you had no problems with the SMA as your employer? 

Absolutely none. They had a bit of a problem with me. 

Sounds like they liked you, too. I mean, they liked 
the i dea of someone getting on with the job and showing some en-
ter p rise, and you showed that, so that seemed to be all right , 

read on the memorial in Cooma that 120 died during the building 
of the Scheme. 

TS: Yes. 

KH: Did you know any o f the people who died? 
TS: No. They were usually accidents on the construction 

I 

site and the tunnels. and as I mentioned, we did not have contact 

for some reason with those. They were living somewhere else. 

Also we had little contact with field construction, which was a 
division. And we more or less kept to our investigation divi-

sion, which was a very interesting division . 
head, 

KH: 
he died recently .. 

Oh yes. 

Our ex divisional 

TS: Incidentally, he was in the Hotel Kosciusko fire. And 
was on the first floor and surrounded by fires, and jumped into a 

court yard and broke both his ankles. Completely surrounded by 

fire. If there was a victim of that fire, it should have been /1~-,nl 
Q~-!''1. , but somehow , he got out. I don't know whether they carried 
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or something. 

KH: And he jumped into the courtyard and the fire was all 

around him. 

TS: Fire all around, yes, and he broke both his ank l es. 

This is true because I asked him later about that . and he said 

it . I h ad heard about it at that stage. It was April, and 

pretty cold. People always ask what people did - "It must have 

b een cold outside." I said, "Yo u. eithe r went closer to the fire 

or further away from the fire." 

KH : I suppose it burned the whole night . It was hot the 
whole night. 

Yes, it was hot all right . 

KH: And what do you think of the Snowy Scheme? Do YOU 

think it was a good idea? 

TS: Oh yes. 

KH: They have put the dams in and 

TS : Ye s , it is progress, yes. No doubt. I often think 

a bou t th a t, and in my mind there .1. s absolutely no doubt. 

KH: Even thou gh it stop ped the flow of some of the rivers. 

I t h a s flooded large areas which were farming land, and now it 

ha s caused some salt problems. The irrigation has caused s a lt 

prob l ems ou t west in the irrigation areas. 

TS: Tha t .1. s unfortunate, yes, I realise that, yes, in the 
Mu rra y , ye s . 

KH: In the Riverina. 

TS: I know that. Last year I p u rposely fo l lowed the Murray 

fro m the mouth right up - I always follow that. 

KH: By car? 

TS: BY car. I planned to $low down, but I was .1.n 
-+O 

something went wrong, I went/ Tibet, and from Tibet I had to rush 

to the Grand Prix in Adelaide. 

KH: Were you tr~kking in Tibet? Were you. walking? 
TS: 

were 

A little bit, yes. 

very bad a lready. 

I was not very good, but the 
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KH: And so when you drove down the Riverina, did you see 

much evidence of 

TS: No , I have not noticed it . But I have, of course, fol -

lowed the story and followed the pictures, and it must be pretty 

bad, the salt. Nothing can be done about that. Well, it is not 

the Snowy Mountain Scheme's fault, 

that stage, it i s like AI~$ . 

Nobody was aware of it at 

KH: -You see, most of the power now comes from coal fired 

power stations in Sydney and Newcastle, and the Snowy only sup-

plies the peak, I think . 

TS ! Yes , yes, that is right. But even at those stages, it 

was a l way s · SQi d , and we knew thc;t right from the beg i nning that ,~ 
this is not a basic load, thi~for the peak load. And Sir Wil-

liam Hudson always used to - in his speeches, he said, "The 

power, 

Scheme , 

although it is, by legislation, the main thing of the 

it is not the mos t important thing. 

thing is the water which will flow inland." 

not k now that it would cause damage as well . 

The most important 

But of course he did 

Nobody knew that. 

KH : Do you think the Scheme could be built today, if 

someone proposed it today? 

TS : No ~&C~£.C- • . I 
KH : Why wouldn ' t it? 

TS : Because the Greenies would be against it . 

KH: Oh , I see. Do you think the Greenies are strong 

enough, do you? 

bers to stop it? 

Do you think the Greenies h ave got enough num-

TS : I don 't know. They manage in other parts of the 

country sometime . This is too big. If it was rainforest, well 
maybe . 

this. 

They can be shouted down . But not a big scheme l ike 

I don't think they would have any chance. But I am glad, 

what a nice lake we have got here . 

KH : Yes, you have certainly got a nice view from here . 

TS: I have built a beautiful pontoon on it, which I built 

in 71 , ~1 5 years - and go floating on the pontoon, and parties, 30 
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people on the pontoon. That would not be possible if it was not 
here. And of course, I would not be living in Jindabyne, I don't 

think , if the lake was no t here. I possibly would, because of the 
snow. 

KH: In some ways it is a paradox that the Snowy - I mean, 

before the Snowy came, this was rural ; it was horse and buggy 

days , and you still had the grazing in the high country. And to 
some extent the grazing, combined with burning, was causing some 
damage . And the Snowy , in a sense, became the lever for pushing 

out the grazing in order to improve the catchment . So in some 
ways the Greenies have the SMA to thank to get rid of grazing 

which has improved the rest of the Park , 90% of the Park, or 

more, because the Snowy Scheme has on ly affected a small part of 

it . And in turn , of course , the Snowy Scheme has enabled things 

like Thredbo and other resorts to develop. How far, do you 

think, should this be a llowed to go? On the o ne hand, you have 

got a very small part of Au stralia, which is pretty rare in 

Australia - mounta ins covered with snow. It has got a high 
eco logica l , wild life habitat value. But it does a lso have the 
snow which attracts people by the thousands . How far do you 
think - where . at what poin t should development of that kind 
stop? Have we reached the balance? 
resorts? 

TS : Yes. 

Can we have many more 

KH: I mean, s hould even more of Ma in Range be developed for 
downhill skiing, for instance? 
TS: Yes, I believe that . It does not do any damage . 
only - t he way it goes , there is absolute l y n o damage . 

don't believe in this, what they call "visual pollution." 
don ' t believe at al l in that. 

KH: 

It is 

And I 
I 

TS : 
It does not affect you? 

I don 't believe that . Look, I am very much influenced 
too by what happens in the rest of the world. And if YOU look at 
beautiful Swiss photographs of the mountains, the photograph is 



2177 

Tony Sponar 

no good if there is not some human e lement in 

n ot a church, and a little house~ - r hat~ 
there. If there is . .r. -1/tAT. 

power lines I -
But chairlifts do not - absolutely do not - offend me. To the 

contrary, I think it belongs to the mountains, to the snow. 

KH: 

TS : 

KH: 

TS : 

So you would not mind a chairlift going up - - -

Leave Kosciusko for the walkers. 

All right . 
Leave Kosciusko to wal ker s, but there are othe r moun-

tains which - you will never see anybody there. 

be protected if nobody wants to see them anyhow? 

Why should they 

KH: What about - like, for instance , up the Guthega River 

towards Mount Ta te, would you 

TS : Mount Tate was - at one stage - was already permitted 

for development. I don't t h ink it would be wise because the 

weather is bad there. I don't think it - often very bad 

visibility, because it has not got trees; it has n ot got rocks, 

and all that . And you need al l that to be able to ski . It would 

not be wise. but I would be in favour . At o n e stage it was al-

ready permitted, and only because the man who got the rights , got 

broke , he did not go ahead. 

KH : Where else would you like to - I mean - - -

TS: WelL no doubt - ':...~<:.t it is almost permitted - suggested 
.j.t-,Q ~rnl1¥r will be <3/"'~ 

by the Park that ........ .... and access will be by the extension 

of the Skitube , I think the Park will insist upon that . 

is a nice little neat area. 

Bu t it 

KH: So it would be a nother branch that would go off under 

Mount Perisher and come out - - -

TS: If they don't change their mind s , or if the Tube does 

not get broke, and all that goes along with that . That would be 

it. But even without that, it is a neat little area. And, of 

course , through the years I h ave got wiser and as I a m not as 

able to ski as I used to , I feel much more with the average 

skier. An average skier is the beginner, and the novice and the 

intermediate, and they n eed facilities. They need facilities for 
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them .. a nd this ~ra.l'f~ef . .... would be a neat li. t t le one to open up . 

Of course, I don 't believe those figures which the fui>e_ people 

are producing. That is not true - 40,000 skiers in t he Perisher 

Range . It is not possible, it is too many. At the moment the 
capacity is 16,000, and they are talking about 40,000 there . B t u . 
these peopl~till be allowed to go ahead . It is not a very 

good a rea . those .. valleys, but if anybody wants to invest , 
it is not damaging. And Thredbo shoul d be a llowed to extend if 
they wish to . There is no damage done there . 

KH: How do you feel about accommodation, which seems t o 
cause a lot more problems? Accommodation in the alpine areas 

where the snow actua lly falls? Particularly the sewage problem: 

the transport problems , the garbag~ problems and so on . 
TS : Well, you are talking , apparently, about Perisher . 

Well , Perisher wa s bloody badly designed - designed by the Park . 

The Park has done all the damage there, becau se they insisted -

instead of European -style village like Thredbo, where the serv-

ices are all concentrated in o ne spot , they put a bit up there , a 

bit out there , long ~c;cr~£ ...... route everywhere . long sewage 

lines , long water lines. It is just the Park's fault . And i.f 
anything happens - well, everybody .9or reccr-,(:de.d 
that the accommodation is out of 

with that now -
J?tt:}(/~I;, S • 

KH : Yes. it seems to be . 

TS : Yes, so all right, but it will be very bad if all of a 

sudden the Parv. changes it mind again , and said , "OK, back to t h e 
mountains." Because Ji ndaby n e a n d all this is growing because 

they were expe l led from there, so by now, it is the right thing 
to do . 

KH: But would you say that the development of the mou n tains 
is unlimited? I mean, where would you put the limits? 
TS : I wou l d put quite a bit more . 

it i s o n e per cent of the Park, isn ' t it? 

Park is developed . 

KH : I don't know. 

At the mom e nt, I think 

One per cent of the 
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TS: I think it is on~ per cent . I would go to three per 

cent, easy, because i t does not do any damage. Lower down , it 

does not. And this visual impact , what they have done with Blue 

Cow, that is so fantastic - stupid. They hid the main building, 

yet the big, ugly water tower is visible f r om everywhere. 

KH : Is that what it is, the big white thing? 

TS : Yes - Jesus Christ! Building which could be beautiful, 

this must be hidden, but that water tower that must be there . 

KH : I see . 

TS : But they destroyed the concept of Blue Cow, I was very 

closely associated with Blue Cow . ItLis my baby too . 
.I Wt1ts- ,, ,J.c«' 

I was the 

first one to suggest it in 1968 /'\.for a study for the Park . But 

where the Park insisted they put the c e ntr e, the building, 

out of snow, it is out of everywhere . 

skiing you have to start walking . 

KH: I see . 

And before you start 

it is 

TS! With heavy boots and all what you have n ow, and try to 

get back in - to start walking uphill, 

KH : Is it too windy there, or 

TS: It is exposed to sun, the snow disappears very early , 

And the best runs for novices, intermediate, you cannot reach 

skiing down . You have to start walking . It i s short walk, but 
want 

still, people don'tAto walk . After all, it is business which 

tries to attract customers , and customers who find out that going 

to Perisher is much easier because you do n ot need to walk, they 

will go to Perisher . They will n ot go to Blue Cow . 

I<H : I think I have just about asked you every question that 

I can th i nk of . • I t I would/'\ mind looking through some of your 

photos, if that is possible. 

TS : 

ganised . 

KH: 
Thredbo . 

I don't know what I have . It is extremely disor-

Have you got - the ones that were in here - of early 

There is one of the Cracken back River , across the 

bridge there. Can I borrow some photos to make copies -do you 
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mind that? 

TS: Yes, that is all right. If it is 100 per cent certain 
that I 9et it back. 

KH: Yes. 

TS: You see this . for i n stance, this is the original chair-
lift line to the golf links at Thredbo. And they simply aban-
doned it. And this is just superimposed I made other runs , you 
know , wiped it, it was before any clearing was done already, And 
I al ready wanted an Olympic course to have started here. And 
that one is going ahead. 

So that one is a good one. 
I have government money for that one. 

KH: 
TS: 

it. 

KH: 

TS: 

Oh, so You would have taken it up that gully there? 

Yes , that is right . Danny ~ollman~ helped to survey 

Oh, d_id he? 

He he.ld the staff I have picture somewhere of him . 
And that it should have been instead of being here, that one . 
Centra l Valley is now here, behind this. 
KH : 

TS : 

KH : 
TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

Like down here , somewhere. 

I used to have a lot of S~moyeds. 
Oh, did you? 

This is just outside Sponar ' s. 

Were they used to tow the dog sleds? 

No, j ust for decoration . I tried at one stage to build a 
big9er lift . This is the poma we used to have. At on e stage I 
t hought of .. . having a chairlift right to the top . There is not 
enough snow, This is at the Rainbow Lake , the reservoir on the 
top . 

l<H : 

TS : 

l<H : 

The top dam? 

Yes. 

Right, I have never been there. There is a track into 
there, isn't there? 

There is a track and it is a very attractive place . 
Yes, so I have heard . I must go there . 
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TS: Smiggin Holes used to have a swimming pool. And I once 

launc hed my sailing boat on the swimming pool. 

be moored on our lake at Sponar's. 

My boat used to 

KH: I am interested in that photo of the burnt out hotel, 

too, or any of you skiing, or any of you working on the Snowy 

Scheme. You lent me those three that you sent of your crossing 

trip, and I have included two of those in the book. 

come out about April next year. 

That should 

TS: That was the first stage. That would have been the 

second year in operation, tfter I repaired a little bit outside 
' . j,~ . . of Sponar s. The ablution.l'\is still standing here, the o ld one 

which I pulled down later. It would have been the second year of 

operation . 

KH : I would not mind borrowing that to make a copy, 

TS: And this is how I imagined Thredbo should look like, 

There was nothing there yet. 

KH: 

them? 

I see. Have you got any photos without the black on 

TS: I should have somewhere, yes. 

KH: I would be interested to see any photos of Thredbo, 

before and after . 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

That one. 

That is right, that is the one you sent me. 

That was the Sydney Morning Herald front page. 

severa l ones. 

KH : 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

Which one is you? 

This one here. 

I would not have recognised you. 

The first year u~ there, 51, 

I had 

KH: Can I get a copy of that? I would not mind getting a 

copy of that one. 

TS : This was the first ever sail on Lake Jindabyne. The 
day they closed the gate on Lake Jindabyne, I had my sailing boat 

already. 
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KH: That is near the old bridge, is it? 

TS: 

low 

That lS the low bridge. 

this o n e is the low one . 
They had two bridges. One was 

KH : 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH : 

that is 

TS: 

KH: 

I see. 

Oh yes . 
You like having firsts, don 't you? 

Apparently a lot of the dams filled much more quickly -

This is the picture - - -

That is right, I wa s interested in - that is the one 
blown up . You haven't got any negatives of these? 

No . 

They are all gone, are they? 

TS: Ye s , I never had it, I don't think, I blow it up by 
Op/'7 

p hotographic i mage . I do m'l\processing. 
KH: 

TS: 

KH : 

KI-! : 

TS : 

KH : 

TS: 

That was taken - it is a square format. 

That is Rollei . a 4 x 4 Rollei . 

A s ma ll Rollei. 

The grey one over there . 

Good heavens! a 4 x 4 Rollei. 

Ever heard of Douglass Baglin? 

Yes, I know Douglass. I bought some ph6tos from him . 

Well, Douqla~Baglin - my first year a t Thredbo . I made 
a very nice low coffee table. And he fell in love with this 
coffee table and he changed the coffee table for this camera . 
KH : 

think . 

TS : 

Really? Gee! That would be quite rare now, I woul d 

That was t he beginning of March one year, 

only snowfall I remember at the beginning of March. 
tha t was the 

Soon a:f ter I 
started - it must have been already'51, t hey built this building 

tnere to transfer the, temporary bar which I he/poZcl to build in 1951, 
M 1,,,-, i< The temporary bar wa~these barracks in the y-:C, ••• And soon - it 

might have been even before I took over this was already as a 
bar, a roadside bar . And then one day it exploded, the gas ex-
Ploded and demolished it completely. So it i2. no more there . 
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And instead of burying it - remember Neville Gar~, who used to be 

the superintendent? 

KH: 

TS: 

Yes, I know Neville. 

Instead of burying it, the bulldozer arrived and made a 

big heap out of that. and we called it Mount Gar~. That is Paul 

Marriott, and that was my wife . 

pictures. 

DouglassBaglin, he took these 

KH: Oh. I see. She must have been chilly, these people are 

all rugged up . That was one for the cameras. 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 
TS: 

KH: 

that 

that? 

one, 

That is one of our employees and our chef. 

Is this your wife? 

Yes. 

And who is this? 

One of the staff . 

And this is the cook at 

That would have been 64. 

Oh, so, Douglas.5 Baglin . I would not mind a photo of 

that is a rare one . I wonder if he would let me borrow 

I might have to get a copy from him of that. I would not 

mind making a copy for the record. And then if I ever use it in a 

publication, I would get the rights from DouglassBaglin if that 

is all right with you . 

TS: 

KH: 
But please 100 per cent to be returned. 

Yes. all right. 

TS: The other day there were some film crowd and 100 per 

cent they promised to return within a few days . 

three months to get in out of them. 

KH: Oh, I see. 

And it took 

TS: This is the original line which I wanted, you see 

that?Just faintly, and this was the final line, where it is now. 
nt ,;.,41c., 

You see the~~ . ... were not cleared yet? 
KH: No. 

TS: I cleared this one here . You see that? Just thinning 
out the trees, because it was pretty thick. So what I was par-
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ticularly doing, just connecting one thinner patch of trees with 

another tninner patch of trees . 

KH: 

TS: 
year, 

you? 

J<H : 

You did not have chain saw . either, did you? /._J 
4-,.,(q.,. .2A,PeA1k,· wc,,~e1r 

We had already - second year.;,"\ .. but not the first 

That was my cocker spaniel. And you know that one. don't 

That is the one that appeared in - that is the first 

bridge across the Crackenbac~. 

KH : 
photo . 

TS : 

KH: 
TS: 

Yes , I built that one. 

Did YOU? Danny C~ llman had this too. Not the same 
With his family standing on the bridge . 

Is that right? 

Yes. I was quite surprised . 

Here he is. Danny C~llman . This is when I had my sail-
ing boat on the . .... lake . 

TS : 

KH : 

TS : 

KH : 

TS : 

Is that You and your wife ? 

No . a girl friend . 

That mu.st be someone else. then . 

One of t he girl friends . 

I ·see. 

That is much as I have ~or t he time being. I cannot 
thin k of any - there is plenty of them around . 
KH: 

TS: 

What about this one here of you as a younger ma n? 

That one was returned t o me very recently, and I did 
not Y. now where I put it. 

KH : And the one of the burnt out hotel, it is a big poster 

downstairs ...... . .. The Eagle Ru n - up from Kunama~ 
TS : 

l(unama -

KH: 

TS: 

KH: 

t . :> ,1.me. 

TS: 

Up from the top from the bridge above K unama down to 

Oh, you originated that , did you? 

Yes. 

Did YOU hold the best time for that for some period of 

This is the particu lar run. 
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KH: 

TS : 

once. 
J<H: 

TS : 

KH : 

TS: 

This is you doing the run? 

Yes. This was the particular r un . I have done it only 

Only once, oh, right . 

It is ju st after jumping off the Co<r.; c.~ . 
What speed did YOU reach? 

I don't know. It was a little bit of a joke because 
t h e tc~ck,was not prepared and was changeable. And one could have 
easily had pretty rotten falls. This would have been ~3, yes 

'.l 95 3 . 

KH: That is Eagle Run. They inaugurated an Eagle badge or 
something, wasn't it? 

TS: Yes, yes , there was. I sort of put the idea into 

Charles Anton's mind , and then he was organiser, because he prac-
tically owned Kuna ma , this was Kuna ma , I am waxing skis and 

Charles Anton is hammering something. 
KH: 
TS : 

KH: 

You drove in there with a - -

There was already one of those old 

With tracks? 

weo..se Is . C,i,.~-f we o..se/.s 
I 

TS: Yes. 

about 1951. 

-That is what they used for the firswears up to 

KH : So this is you and Charles Anton. I will just write 
this down . Charles Anton and Tony Sponar at ~unama in 1954 . 


